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PRELIMINARY

(A) In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions
bear the following meanings

"Business Day" means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday, public holiday or bank
holiday, on which banks are generally open for normal business in the City of London,

"BVICo" means EBT Digital Communications Retall Limited, a business company
incorporated In the Bntish Virgin Islands with registered number 1571258, having its
registered office at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services (BVI) Limited, Walkers
Chambers, 171 Main Street, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands,

"certificated form" or "in certificated form" means a share or other secunty which is not
in uncertificated form (that s, not in CREST),

"Companies Law" means the Companies Law, CAP 22 of the Cayman Islands, as
amended,

"Company" means EBT Mobile China PLC, a public imited company Incorporated in
England and Wales with registered number 4654471, having its registered office at
Phoenix House, 18 King Willam Street, London EC4N 7HE,

"Court” means the High Court of Justice in England and Wales,

"Court Meeting" means the meeting of the holders of EBT Shares convened with the
permission of the Court pursuant to section 896 of the Companies Act 2006 for 3 00 pm
on 27 July 2010 to consider and, if thought fit, approve the Scheme, including any
adjournment thereof,




"CREST" means the system for the paperless settlement of trades in secunties and the
holding of uncertificated secunties operated by Euroclear UK & lreland Limited n
accordance with the Regulations,

"EBT Shares" or "Shares" means ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each in the capital of the
Company,

"Effective Date” means the date on which this Scheme becomes effective in accordance
with its terms,

"holder" means a registered holder and includes any person(s} entitled by transmission,

"New BVI Share” means one share of US$1 00 in the capital of BVICo to be allotted and
Issued to NewHoldCo in accordance with the Scheme,

"New Company Shares" means new ordinary shares of O 1 pence each in the capital of
the Company to be allotted and issued to BVICo in accordance with the Scheme,

"NewHoldCo" means EBT Digtal Communications Retail Group, an exempted company
incorporated In the Cayman lIslands with registered number WK-237161, having its
registered office at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87
Mary Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman iIslands,

"New Shares” means new shares of 0 1 pence each in the capital of NewHoldCo to be
allotted and 1ssued in accordance with the Scheme,

"Order’ means the order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme and confirming the
reduction of capital involved in the Scheme,

"Order Date" means the date on which the Order is made or, If later, the date on which
the Order 1s expressed to take effect,

"Regulations"” means the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 (S| 2001/375%), as
amended from time to time,

"Relevant Holders" means holders of Shares whose names appear in the register of
members of the Company at the Scheme Record Time,

"Scheme" means this scheme of arrangement 1n its present form or with or subject to any
modification, addition or condition approved or imposed by the Court,

"Scheme Record Time" means 600 pm (London time) con the Business Day
immediately preceding the Crder Date,

"Scheme Shares” means
(a) all EBT Shares inissue at the date of this document,

(b) all (if any) additicnal EBT Shares 1ssued after the date of this document but up to the
Voting Record Time, and

(c) all (if any) further EBT Shares which may be issued at or after the Scheme Record
Time but at or prior to 6 00 pm on the Business Day immediately preceding the Order
Date in respect of which the onginal or any subsequent holder thereof shall be bound by
the Scheme or shall by such time have agreed in wnting to be bound by the Scheme,
save for any Shares registered in the name of (or beneficially held by) NewHoldCo,

"uncertificated form” or "in uncertificated form" means a share or other secunty
recorded on the relevant register as being held in uncertificated form n CREST, and title
to which, by wirtue of the Regulations, may be transferred by means of CREST, and

"Voting Record Time" means 6 00 p m on the date which 1s two Business Days before
the date of the Court Meeting or, If the Court Meeting 1s adjourned, 6 00 pm on the
second Business Day before the date of such adjourned meeting

The Company's articles of association imit the maximum amount of shares it may 1ssue
to, in aggregate, £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each At
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the date this statement 1s made, the Company has an 1ssued share capital of, in
aggregate, £269,756 34 with 269,756,335 ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each having been
issued and allotted fully paid

NewHoldCo was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 February 2010 under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with the name EBT Digital Communications
Retail Group

Pursuant to NewHoldCo's memorandum of association, its current authonsed share
capital 1s £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 shares of 0 1 pence each The authorised
share capital can be increased by a special resolution of its shareholders At the date this
statement 1s made, NewHoldCo has an issued share capital of, in aggregate, £10 00 with
10,000 shares of 0 1 pence having been issued and allotted fully paid

BVICo was incorporated in the Bntish Virgin Islands on 12 February 2010 under the BVI
Business Companies Act 2004 (as amended) of the Bntish Virgin Islands as a business
company with the name EBT Digital Communications Retail Limited

BVICo's memorandum of association imits the maximum amount of shares it may 1ssue
to, In aggregate, US$50,000 divided intc 50,000 shares of US$1 00 each At the date this
statement 1s made, BVICo has an i1ssued share capital of, in aggregate, US$1 00 with one
share of US$1 00 having been 1ssued and allotted fully pad

NewHoldCo and BVICo have agreed to appear by Counsel on the hearnng of the clam
form to sanction this Scheme and to undertake to the Court to be bound by the provisions
of this Scheme and to execute and do or procure to be executed and done all such
documents, acts and things as may be necessary or desirable to be executed or done by
it for the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme

Cancellation of Scheme Shares

The issued share capital of the Company shall be reduced by canceling and
extinguishing the Scheme Shares

The Company shall be re-registered as a pnvate imited company in accordance with the
Order of the Court authonsing such re-registration under section 651 of the Comparues
Act 2006

Forthwith and contingently upon the reduction of capital referred to in clause 1 1 taking
effect, the Company shall apply and capitalise the reserve ansing as a result of the
reduction of capital pursuant to clause 1 1 1n paying up n full at par such number of New
Company Shares as shall be equal to the number of Scheme Shares cancelled pursuant
to clause 1 1 of this Scheme, which shall be allotted and i1ssued credited as fully paid up
{free from all liens, charges, encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and
any other interests of any nature whatsoever) to BVICo and/or its nominee

Consideration for the Cancellation of the Scheme Shares

Subject to and in consideration for the cancellation of the Scheme Shares pursuant to
clause 1 1 and the allotment and i1ssue of the New Ordinary Shares to BVICo as provided
in clause 1 3, BVICo shall (subject to, and in accordance with, the remaining terms of this
Scheme) allot and 1ssue the New BVI Share credited as fully paid to NewHoldCo and/or
its nominee

Subject to and in consideration for the 1ssue of the New BVI Share to NewHoldCo and/or
its nominee referred to In clause 2 1, NewHoldCo shall (subject to, and 1n accordance
with, the remaining terms of this Scheme) allot and 1ssue New Shares credited as fully
paid to Relevant Holders on the basis of one New Share for each Scheme Share held at
the Scheme Record Time
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Allotment and issue of the New BVI Share and New Shares

The New BV! Share to be 1ssued pursuant to clause 2 1 shall rank pan passu with all
other shares in the capital of BVICo in issue on the Effective Date, will be issued free from
all hens, charges, encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and any other
interests of any nature whatsoever, and shall rank 1in full for all dividends or other
distributions made, paid or declared after the Effective Date on the ordinary share capital
of BVICo in accordance with BVICo's bye-laws

The New Shares to be issued pursuant to clause 2 2 shall rank pan passu with all other
New Shares in 1ssue on the Effective Date, will be 1ssued free from all liens, charges,
encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and any other interests of any
nature whatsoever, and shall rank in full for all dvidends or distnbutions made, paid or
declared after the Effectve Date on the ordinary share capital of NewHoldCo n
accordance with NewHoldCo's bye-laws

Immediately after this Scheme becomes effective

(a) BVICa shall make all such allotment of and shall issue such New BVI Share as 1s
required to be 1ssued to give effect to this Scheme to NewHoldCo, and

{b) NewHoldCo shall make all such allotments of and shall Issue such New Shares as
are required to be 1ssued to give effect to this Scheme to persons respectively
entrtled thereto, such consideration to be settled as set out in clause 3 4, but
subject to clause 3 5

Settlement of the consideration shall be effected as follows

(a) the New BVI Share shaill be i1ssued to NewHoldCo in certificated form and a share
certificate for those shares shall be 1ssued to NewHoldCo by the fourteenth day
following the Effective Date, and

(b) in respect of a holding of Scheme Shares
n In uncertificated form, or
(n) In certificated form,

the New Shares to which the Relevant Holder 1s entitled will be 1ssued In
registered form Each holding of New Shares will be entered into the register of
members of NewHoldCo, which will constitute evidence of ownership of such
shares pursuant to the Companies Law Share certificates in respect of the New
Shares will only be 1ssued by NewHoldCo following written request by the relevant
holder of such shares

The provisions of this clause 3 shall be subject to any prohibition or condition imposed by
law Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, if, in respect of any holder of
Scheme Shares with a registered address in a junsdiction outside the United Kingdom or
the Cayman Islands, NewHoldCo 1s advised that the allotment and/or issue of New
Shares pursuant to this clause 3 would infringe the laws of such junsdichion or would or
may require NewHoldCo to observe any governmental or other consent or any
registration, filing or other formality, with which NewHoldCo 1s unable to comply or which
NewHoldCo regards as unduly onerous to comply with, NewHoldCo may, in its sole
discretion, either

(a) determine that New Shares shall not be allotted and issued to such holder under
this clause 3 but shall instead be allotted and 15sued to a nominee appointed by
NewHoldCo as trustee for such holder on terms that the nominee shall, as soon
as practicable following the Effective Date, sell the New Shares so allotted and
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issued at the best price which can reasonably be obtained and account for the net
proceeds of such sale (after the deduction of all expenses and commissions,
including any amounts in respect of value added tax payable thereon) by sending
a cheque to such holder In the absence of bad faith or wilful default, none of the
Company, NewHoldCo or the nominee or any broker or agent of any of them shall
have any liability for any loss or damage arising as a result of the timing or terms
of such sale, or

(b) determine that New Shares shall be sold, in which event the New Shares shall be
issued to such holder and NewHoldCo shall appoint a person to act pursuant to
this clause 3 5(b) and such person shall be authonsed on behalf of such holder to
procure that any shares in respect of which NewHoldCo has made such
determination shall as soon as practicable following the Effective Date be sold at
the best pnce which can reasonably be obtained at the time of sale and the net
proceeds of such sale (after the deduction of all expenses and commissions,
including any amounts In respect of value added tax payable thereon) shall be
paid to such holder by sending a cheque to such holder To give effect any to
such sale, the person so appointed shall be authonsed on behalf of such holder to
execute and deliver a form of transfer and to give such nstructions and to do all
other things which he may consider necessary or expedient in connection with
such sale in the absence of bad faith or wilful default, none of the Company,
NewHoldCo or the person so appointed or any broker or agent of any of them
shall have any hability for any loss or damage ansing as a result of the tming or
terms of such sale, and

(c) In the case of Scheme Shares in certificated form at the Scheme Record Time,
NewHoldCo shall on behalf of the nominge or person appointed pursuant to
clause 3 5(a) make any cash payment pursuant to clause 3 5(a) by delivenng to
the persons respectively entitled thereto, or as they may direct, cheques in sterling
drawn on a UK clearing bank by post by the fourteenth day following the Effective
Date

All delivenes of notices, documents of title and cheques required to be made by this
clause shall be effected by posting the same by first class post in pre paid envelopes
addressed to the persons respectively entitted thereto at their respective addresses as
appearing In the register of members (or, in the case of joint holders, to the address of
that one of the joint holders whose name stands first in the said register of members In
respect of the joint holding) at the Scheme Record Time

Neither the Company nor NewHoldCo shall be responsible for any loss or delay In the
transmission of the documents of title posted in accordance with clause 3 6 which shall be
posted at the nsk of the addressee

Transfers of the New Shares 1ssued to Relevant Holders pursuant to this Scheme shall be
certified against the reqister of members of NewHoldCo

Certificates

With effect from and including the Effective Date, all certificates representing Scheme
Shares shall cease to be valid for any purpose and Relevant Holders shall at the request
of the Company return such certificates for cancellation to the Company or to any person
appointed by the Company

With effect from and including the Effective Date, in respect of those Relevant Holders
holding Scheme Shares in uncertificated form, Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited shall be
instructed to cancel such holders’ entitlement to such Scheme Shares

Mandated payments
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Each mandate relating to the payment of dividends on any Scheme Shares and other
Instructions given to the Company by Relevant Holders in force at the Scheme Record
Time shall, unless and until amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date
to be an effective mandate or instruction to NewHoldCo In respect of the corresponding
New Shares to be allotted and 1ssued pursuant to this Scheme

Operation of this Scheme

This Scheme shall become effective In accordance with its terms as soon as an office
copy of the Order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme under section 899 of the
Companies Act 2006 and confirming under section 648 of that Act the reduction of capital
provided for by this Scheme shall have been duly delivered to the Registrar of Companies
in England and Wales for registration and, in the case of the capital reduction, if the Order
of the Court confirming it so specifies, registered by him

Unless this Scheme shall become effective on or before 30 September 2010 or such later
date, if any, as the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo may agree and the Court may
allow, this Scheme shall never hecome effective

The Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo may jointly consent on behalf of all persons
concemed to any modification of or addition to this Scheme or to any conditton which the
Court may approve or impose

Dated 24 June 2010




THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

PART 1 OF THIS DOCUMENT COMPRISES AN EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTION 887 OF THE COMPANIES ACT

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you are recommended to seek
your own financial advice immediately from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor,
accountant or independent financlal adviser who, If you are taking advice in-the United
Kingdom, is authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or from another
appropriately authorised independent financial adviser if you are taking advice in a territory
outside the United Kingdom.

It you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your EBT Shares, please send this document and
the accompanying Forms of Proxy at once to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker,
bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmussion to the
purchaser or transferee However, such documents should not be forwarded or transmitted, n
whole or in part, in or into any junsdiction if to do so would constitute a violation of the relevant
laws of such junsdiction If you have sold or transiferred part of your holding of EBT Shares, please
consult the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected

The distribution of this document in junsdictions other than the United Kingdom may be restrcted
by the laws of those junsdictions and therefore persons into whose possession this document
comes should inform themselves about, and observe, any such restnctions Falure to comply with
any such restnctions may constitute a wviolation of the securities laws of any such junsdiction

EBT Mobile China PLC

{Incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985, with Registered Number 4654471)

Recommended proposal
for the introduction of a new holding company domiciled in the Cayman Islands
by means of a scheme of arrangement under Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006
and
Notices of Court Meeting and General Meeting

Your attention is drawn 1o the letter from the Chairman of the Company, which also comprises an
explanatory statement in compliance with section 837 of the Compames Act, set out 1n Part 1 of
this document This Part 1 explains the Scheme and contains the unamimous recommendation of
the Directors that you vote in favour of the Scheme at the Count Meeting and 1n favour of the
Special Resolution 1o be proposed at the General Meeting

Notices of the Court Meeting and the General Meeting, each of which will be held at the offices of
Hogan Lovells International LLP, Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG on 27 July
2010, are set out at the end of this document The Court Meeting will start at 300 pm and the
General Meeting at 330 pm (or as soon thereafter as the Court Meetng shall have been
concluded or adjourned)

The action to be taken in respect of the Meetings 1s set out on page 4 and also in paragraph 16
of Part 1 of this document Shareholders will find accompanying this document a white Form of
Proxy for use in connection with the Court Meeting and a blue Form of Proxy for use in connection
with the General Meeting Whether or not you intend to attend the Meetings in person, please
complete and sign each of the Forms of Proxy in accordance with the instructions printed therean
and return them to the Company's registrars, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, as socn as possible and, in any event, 50 as {o be receved not later
than 48 hours {excluding non-working days) before the time appointed for the relevant Meeting 1f
the white Form of Proxy for the Court Meeting 15 not returned by the above time, it may be
handed to the Charman of the Court Meeting before the start of the Court Meeting and will still be
valid However, in the case of the General Meeting, unless the blue Form of Proxy 1s returned by
the time mentioned in the instructions printed thereon, it will be nvald

The completion and retumn of a Form of Proxy will not prevent you from attending and voting Iin
person at the Court Meeting or the General Meeting or any adjournments thereof, If you so wish
and are so entitled




IMPORTANT NOTICE

The distribution of this document in junsdictions other than the United Kingdom may be restncted
by the laws of those junsdictions and therefore any persons who are subject to the laws of any
junsdiction cther than the United Kingdom should inform themselves aboul, and observe, any
applicable requirements Any tallure to comply with the restnchons may constitute a violation of the
secunties laws of any such junsdiction This document does not constitute an offer or an invitation
to purchase or subscnbe for any secunties or a solicitation of an offer to buy any secunties
pursuant to this document or otherwise in any junsdiction in which such offer or solicitation 1s
unlawful This document has been prepared for the purposes of complying with English law and
the information disclosed may not be the same as that which would have been disclosed f this
document had been prepared in accordance with the laws of any junsdicton ouiside England

The New Shares have not been and will not be registered under the US Secunties Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”) or under the secuntes laws of any state of the United States
Neither the US Securnities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) nor any US state securties
commission has reviewed or approved this document or the Scheme or the New Shares Any
representation to the contrary is a cnminal offence in the United States

Notice to New Hampshire residents

Neither the fact that a registration statement or an application for a licence has been filed
under this chapter with the state of New Hampshire nor the fact that a security is effectively
registered or a person is licensed in the state of New Hampshire constitutes a finding by
the secretary of state that any document filed under RSA 421-B Is true, complete and not
misleading. Neither any such fact nor the fact that an exemption or exception is available
for a security or a transaction means that the secretary of state has passed In any way
upon the mernts or qualifications of, or recommended or given approval to, any person,
secunty, or transaction It is unlawful to make, or cause to be made, to any prospective
purchaser, customer, or chent any representation inconsistent with the provisions of this
paragraph

The statements contained In this document are made as at the date of this document, unless
some other time 1s specified In relation to them, and service of this document shall not give nse to
any imphcation that there has been no change in the facts set forth in this document since such
date

Nething contained In this document shall be deemed to be a forecast, projection or estimate of the
future financial performance of the Company or the Group except where otherwise stated

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains certain forward locking statements with respect to the financial condition,
results of operations and business of the Company or the Group, NewHoldCo and BVICo and
certain plans and objectives of the boards of directors of the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo
These forward looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate to histoncal
or curremt facts Forward locking statements often use words such as “anticipate”, “target”,
"expect”, “estmate”, “intend”, “plan”, “goal”, “‘believe”, “will", “may”, “should”, “would”, “could” or
other words of simiar meaning These statements are based on assumptions and assessments
made by the boards of directors of the Company, NewHoldCo and BViICo in the hght of ther
experience and thewr perception of histoncal trends, current conditions, expected f{uture
developments and other tactors they beleve appropnate By ther nature, forward looking
statements nvolve nsk and uncertainty and the factors described in the context of such forward
looking statements in this document could cause actual results and developments to differ
matenally from those expressed in or imphed by such forward looking statemenis

Should one or more of these nsks or uncertainties materahse, or should undertying assumptions
prove incorrect, actual results may vary matenally from those descrbed in this document The
Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo assume no obhigation to updale or correct the information
contained 1in this document

CURRENCIES

All references to “pounds”, “pounds Sterling”, “Sterling”, "£", “pence”, “penny” and “p” are to the
lawful currency of the United Kingdom and all references to “US dollars”, “$”, “US$" and “cents”
are to the lawful currency of the United States




EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Event
Latest time for lodging Forms of Proxy for
(a) Court Meeting (white form)
(b) General Meeting (blue form)
Voting Record Time
Court Meeting?
General Meeting®

Court Heanng (to sanction the Scheme and confirm the
reduction of capttal involved in the Scheme)

Scheme Record Time

Effective Date of the Scheme

Time and/or date

300pm on 23 July 2010'
330pm on 23 July 2010’
600 pm on 23 July 2010
300pm on 27 July 2010
27 July 20103

17 August 2010*
6 00 pm on 16 August 2010*

18 August 2010

Unless otherwise stated, all references in this document to times are to Londen times

1 Please see “Acton 1o be taken” on page 4

2 The Court Meeting and the General Meeting will both be held alt the offices of Hogan Loveills International LLP, Atlantc House,

Holbom Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG on 27 July 2010

3 Tocommence at 330 pm or, if later, immediately after the conclusion or adjourmnment of the Court Meeting
4 These times and dates are indicative only and will depend, among other things, on the date upon which the Court sanctions the

Scheme Any changes to these times and dates will be notified to Shareholders

3




ACTION TO BE TAKEN

This page should be read Iin conjunction with the rest of this document and the
accompanying Forms of Proxy. You are recommended to seek your own financial advice
immediately from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or independent
financial adviser who, if you are talung advice in the United Kingdom, is authorised under
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, or from another appropnately authorised
independent financial adviser if you are taking advice in a territory outside the United
Kingdom

The Scheme will require approval at a meeting of EBT Shareholders convened by order of the
Court to be held at the offices of Hogan Lovells Internaticnal LLP, Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct,
London EC1A 2FG at 300 pm on 27 July 2010 Certain resolutions will also require approval of
EBT Shareholders at the General Meeting to be held at the same location at 330 pm on 27 July
2010 (or as soon thereafter as the Court Meeting 1s concluded or adjourned)

Instructions on the actions to be taken are set out in paragraph 16 of Part 1 of this document and
are summansed below

Whether or not you plan to attend the Meetings, please

1 complete, sign and return the WHITE Form of Proxy, as soon as possible, but in any event
so as to be received by any of the means set out below no later than 300 pm on 23 July
2010,

AND

2 complete, sign and return the BLUE Form of Proxy, as soon as possible, but in any event so
as to be recewved by any of the means set out below no later than 330 pm on 23 July
2010

The completion and return of Forms of Proxy will not prevent you from attending and voting at the
Court Meeting andfor the General Meeting, or any adjournments thereof, in person should you so
wish and are so enttled

IT 1S IMPORTANT THAT, FOR THE COURT MEETING, AS MANY VOTES AS POSSIBLE ARE
CAST SO THAT THE COURT MAY BE SATISFIED THAT THERE IS A FAIR AND
REASONABLE REPRESENTATION OF SCHEME SHAREHOLDER OPINION YOU ARE
THEREFORE STRONGLY URGED TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN YOUR FORMS OF
PROXY AS SOON AS POSSIBLE

Forms of Proxy should be retumned to the Company's registrars

(2) by post using the reply-paid service prnted on the reverse of the Form of Proxy (for use in
the UK only}, or

(b) by post otherwise addressed to Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4TU, or

{c) dunng normal business hours only, by hand to the Company's registrars at the address set
out in (b) above

Alternatively, white Forms of Proxy (but NOT blue Forms of Proxy} may be handed to the
Chairman of the Court Meeting before the start of the Court Meeting on 27 July 2010 and will still
be vald
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PART 1

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
AND EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(in comphance with sechon 897 of the Companies Act 20086)

Registered Office
Phoenix House

18 King Wilham Street
London EC4N 7HE
United Kingdom

24 June 2010

To EBT Shareholders and, for information only, to participants under the Share Schemes

Dear Shareholder

Introduction of a new holding company domiciled in the Cayman Islands for the Group and
proposed re-organisation of the Group

1 Introduction

| am wnling to set cut details of a proposal to change our corporate structure which will include
establishing a new exempted company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as the ultimate holding
company of the Group, by way of a scheme of arrangement under Part 26 of the Companies Act
which will require the approval of EBT Shareholders and the Court The proposal to change our
corporate struciure will also involve the winding-up of the Company following the Scheme
becoming effective

The purpose of this letter 15 10 set out the background 10 and reasons for the Scheme, set out the
terms of the Scheme and the terms of the proposed Re-orgamsation and explain why the Board
considers the proposed Scheme to be in the best interests of EBT Shareholders This letter also
explains why the Board i1s unammously recommending that EBT Shareholders vote in favour of the
Scheme at the Court Meeting and General Meeting

In order to approve the terms of the Scheme, a majorty in number representing not less than 75
per cent n value of the EBT Shareholders present and veting either in person or by proxy will
need to vote in favour of the resolutions to be proposed at the Court Meeting, to be held on
27 July 2010 Shareholders will also have to vole in favour of various resolutions to be proposed
at a general meeting of the company, which will be held immediately following the Court Meeting
Details of the actions you should take are set out in paragraph 16 below

2 Background to and reasons for the proposed Scheme and the Re-organisation

In September 2005, the Company (which was then called The Trading Exchange plc} acquwed
EBT Mobile Limited (which 1s incorporated in Hong Kong) At the time of the acquisition of EBT
Mobile Limited, the Company had no trading business and was treated as an investment company
under the AIM Rules Following this acquisition, the Group's trading activittes were based entirely
outside the United Kingdom, with s main trading companies located in China As Shareholders are
aware, on 17 December 2008, the EBT Shares ceased to be admitted to trading on AIM The
current structure of the Group 1s set out In Annex 1 to this document

The Board has recently conducted a review of the Group’s overall business strategy As part of
this review, the Board has examined the existing corporate structure of the Group which has
included a consideration of the ments of continuing with a holding company which 1s incorporated
in England and Wales, in circumstances where

(a) the Group’s main business 15 1n China with no trading activiies n the United Kingdom, and
(b) EBT Shares are no longer traded on AlM




Taking into account these factors, the Board has concluded that it 1s no longer appropnate for the
Group to incur the costs associated with maintaining a holding company which s incorporated in
the United Kingdom and for management time to be spent in ensunng that applicable rules and
regulations m the United Kingdom are comphed with The Board has, therefore, taken advice on
the most beneficial structure for the Group and, taking into account this advice, 1s proposing that
the Group's corporate structure be changed as follows

(a) NewHo!dCo, a newly-incorporated exempted company in the Cayman !slands should become
the ultimate holding company of the Group,

(by a further company, BVICo, newly incorporated in the Bntish Virgin Islands and wholly-owned
by NewHoldCo, should hold, directly, all of the EBT Shares in the Company, and

(c} the Company should be removed from the Group structure

The new Group structure as outlined in paragraphs (a) and (b} above will be implemented by way
of the Scheme and as outlned in paragraph (c¢) by way of the Re-organisation Annex 2 to this
document sets out the proposed structure of the Group following implementation of the Scherne
and Annex 3 sets out the proposed structure of the Group following implementation of the Re-
organisation

The Board believes that the new Group structure offers the Group the following key advantages

(a) the reporting and ongoing regulatory obligations imposed on NewHoldCo and BVICo will be
less burdensome than those currently imposed on the Company As a consequence, this will
provide cost savings for the Group and will enable management to spend more tme
devetoping the Group’s business, and

(b) increased flexibiity when imptementing future plans for market consclidation, capital raising
and development and expansion in the mobile telephony market

As soon as practicable afier the Effective Date, 1t 15 intended to carry out the Re-organisation,
which will involve the winding-up of the Company It 1s anticipated that this will be implemented by
way of a members’ voluntary hquidation As part of the Re-organisaton, the assets of the
Company {prnincipally comprising shares held by i in certan members of the Group incorporated
outside the United Kingdom) will be distributed to the Company's shareholder, BVICo, following
satisfaction of the Company's habiltties

Save as required under the terms of the Shareholders' Agreement (descrbed in paragraph 6
below), the approval of the Shareholders to the Re-orgamisation 18 not required However, the
Board will only implement the Re-orgamsation if it determines that to do so would be most likely to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole This proposed
Re-organisation is not expected to have any matenal effect on the Group’s principal activihes but 1s
proposed so that the Group can benefit from the less burdensome comphance regime and
increased management avallability resuling from having a group consisting of companies
incorperated and resident outside the United Kingdom

Following implementation of the Scheme and the Re-organisation, the Group's principal activities
will continue to be the retal sale of mobile phone products and services, including mobile phones,
SIM cards, phone cards, mobile phone accessores and mechile phone related value-added services
in China

3. Structure of the Scheme

The introduction of NewHoldCo as the ultmate holding company of the Group will be effected by
means of a scheme of arrangement between the Company and the EBT Shareholders under Part
26 of the Companies Act, the prowvisions of which are set out in full in Part 5 of this document The
Scheme will result n EBT Shareholders being allotted New Shares in place of ther existing EBT
Shares and in the Company becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of BVICe As a consequence,
NewHoldCo will become the new parent company of the Group This 15 to be achieved by

(a) canceling the Scheme Shares on the Effective Date and applying the reserve ansing from
such cancellation in paying up i full a number of New Company Shares which 1s equail to
the number of Scheme Shares cancelled and 1ssuing such New Company Shares to BViCao,

(b) BVICo ssuing the New BVI Share 1o NewHoldCo in consideration for the 1ssue of the New
Company Shares by the Company to it, and
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(c) NewHoldCo 1ssuing the New Shares to the Shareholders in consideration for the 1ssue of New
BVI Share by BVICo to it

Under the Scheme, Scheme Sharehclders on the register of members al the Scheme Record Time
will receive from NewHoldCo

for each Scheme Share cancelled one New Share

To become effectve, the Scheme must be approved by a majorty in number of those EBT
Shareholders present and voting either in person or by proxy at the Court Meeting representing 75
per cent or more In value of all Shares held by such EBT Shareholders

The Scheme also requires the sanction of the Court at the Court Heanng, as weil as satisfaction or
waiver of the other Conditions set out In paragraph 4 below Upon the Scheme becoming effective,
it will be binding cn all EBT Shareholders, irrespective of whether or not, being entitled to do so,
they attended or voted at the Court Meeting or the General Meeting

On the Effective Date, share certificates in respect of Scheme Shares will cease to be vald and
should be destroyed In addition, on the Effective Date, entitements to Scheme Shares held within
CREST will be cancelled

Scheme Shareholders who are citizens, residents or nationals of any junsdiction outside the United
Kingdom should refer to paragraph 14 below

In order o facilitate the Scheme, certain amendments to the EBT Articles are proposed These
amendments will ensure that any EBT Shares issued (other than to BVICo or ts nominee(s))
between the approval of the Scheme at the Court Meeting and the Scheme Record Time will be
subject 1o the Scheme and that any EBT Shares 1ssued alter the Scheme becomes effective will
automatically be acquired by BVICo on the same terms as under the Scheme The proposed
amendments to the EBT Articles are descnbed in paragraph 23 of Part 4 of this document and set
out in full in the notice of General Meeting in Part 8 of this document

The current shareholder of NewHoldCo 1s Ringtone Investment Limited (“Ringtone”), currently a
shareholder in the Company, which holds 10,000 shares in the capital of NewHoldCo (the
“Ringtone Shares”}) The Ringtone Shares were 1ssued at nominal value and are fully paid up
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, NewHoldCo will repurchase the Ringtone Shares for norminal
consideration and the Ringtone Shares will then be cancelled

4 Conditions
The implementaton of the Scheme 15 conditional on the following

(a) the Scheme being approved by a majorty in number, representing 75 per cent In value, of
those Shareholders present and voting, either in person or by proxy, at the Court Meeting,

(o) the Special Resolution to approve the matters in connection with the Scheme being duly
passed at the General Meeting by a majonty of not less than 75 per cent of the votes cast,

(c) any consents, approvals, registrations, filings or other requirements of any third party, whether
governmental, regulatory, contractual or otherwise, having been made, given or otherwise
satished,

(d) the Scheme bemng sanchioned (with or without modification} and the reduction of capital of the
Company provided for by the Scheme being confirmed by the Court at the Court Hearing,
and

(e) an office copy of the Order of the Court sanctionng the Scheme under Part 26 of the
Companmes Act and confirming under section 648 of the Compames Act the reducton of
capital provided by the Scheme having been delivered to the Registrar of Companes in
England and Wales for registration and, in the case of the capital reduction, If the Order of
the Court confirming it s¢ speciiies, registered by him

The Directors will not take the necessary steps to implement the Scheme unless the above
conditions have been satished or waived and, at the relevant time, they consider that it continues
to be in the Company’'s and the EBT Shareholders’ best interests that the Scheme should be
implemented

The Scheme contains a provision for the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo jointly to consent, on
behalf of all persons concerned, to any modification of, or addition to, the Scheme, or to any
condition that the Court may think fit to approve or impose The Court would be unlikely to approve
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or impose any modification of, or addition or condiion to, the Scheme which might be matenal to
the interests of Scheme Shareholders unless Scheme Shareholders were informed of any such
modification, addiion or condition R will be a matter for the Court to decide, in s discretion,
whether or not the consent of Scheme Shareholders should be sought at a further meeting
Similarly, f a modification, addition or condiion 15 put forward which, in the opiion of the
Directors, 1s of such a nature or importance as to require the consent of the Scheme Shareholders
at a further meeting, the Directors will not take the necessary steps to enable the Scheme to
become effective unless and untl such consent 1s obtained

The Court Hearing will be held on 17 August 2010 All EBT Shareholders are entitled to attend the
Count Hearing in person or through representation to support or oppose the sanctioning of the
Scheme The Court Heanng will be held at the Royal Gourts of Justice, The Strand, London WC2A
2LL

The Scheme will become effective upon the delivery to the Registrar of Companies in England and
Wales of a copy of the Order, and, if the Order so specifies, registration of that Order This 1s
expected to occur on 18 August 2010 Unless the Scheme becomes effective by not later than
30 September 2010, or such later date as the Company, NewHoldCo and 8VICo may agree and
the Court may allow, the Scheme will not become effective, in which case NewHoldCe shall not
become the new ultimate holding company of the Group In such an event, EBT Shareholders will
remain shareholders of the Company, the Scheme Shares will not be cancelled and New Shares
will not be 1ssued by NewHoldCo to EBT Shareholders

5. Effects of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, Scheme Shareholders will exchange therr shareholdings in the Company for
the same number of New Shares in NewHoldCo, which will be denominated in Sterling Their
proportionate entitlement to participate in the Company’s capital and mcome will not be affected by
reason of the implementation of the Scheme

Immediately following the Scheme becoming effective, BVICe will own no assets other than the
share capital of the Company and nominal cash balances and NewHoldCo will own no assets
other than the share capital of BVICo and nominal cash balances EBT Shareholders will not
receive any amount in cash pursuant to the terms of the Scheme

6 Consents and undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme

The Company, Ringtone, Audley, Taran, CRV and the Managers have entered into the
Shareholders’ Agreement dated 24 August 2009 Pursuant to the terms of the Shareholdess’
Agreement, the Scheme and the proposed Re-organmisation require the prior wrtten consent of
Ringtone and at least three of Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Director appointed by the Managers
Further detaills of the Shareholders’ Agreement are set out In paragraph 22 of Part 4 of this
document

Each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers has given its or his wntten consent 1o
the Scheme and the subsequent proposed Re-orgamisation In addition, the Company has received
irevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme from each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan,
CRV and the Managers Further details of these Shareholders’ consents and undertakings to vole
in favour of the Scheme are set oul in paragraph 9 of Part 4 of this document

The Company has also recewved irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme from
each of the Directors who hold tegal title to Shares, Stephen Davidson and Zhang Ge, as well as
from those Directors who hold options over EBT Shares Further details of the Directors’ interests
in EBT Shares are set out in paragraph 5 of Part 4 of this document and of the Director's
rrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme are set out in paragraph 6 of Part 4 of
this document

7. NewHoldCo and BVICo

On incorporation, the ntial authonsed share capital of NewHoldCo was £400,000 divided into
4,000,000 shares of par vatug £0 10 each in the capital of NewHoldCo One share in the capital of
NewHoidCo was issued to Walkers Nominees Limited, the subscnber to NewHoldCo's
memorandum of association (such share being the “Subscriber Share”) The Subscriber Share
was 1ssued at its nominal value of £010 and was iully pad up The Subscriber Share was
transferred to Ringtone for a consideration of £010 on 8 Apnl 2010 Ringtone subscnbed for a
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further 99 new shares of par value £0 10 each in the capial of NewHoldCo on 8 Apnl 2010 By
shareholder resolutions dated 20 May 2010, Ringtone resolved to vary the share capital of
NewHoldCo from £400,000 divided into 4,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nominal or par value of
£0 10 each, to £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary Shares of a normnal or par value of 01
pence each, and to subdivide the shares in the capital of NewHoldCo which had been 1ssued to
Ringtone into 10,000 shares of 01 pence each (the “Ringtone Shares”) Upon the Scheme
becoming effective, NewHoldCo will repurchase the Ringtene Shares for nominal consideration and
the Ringtone Shares will then be cancelled

On incorporation, the intial authonsed share capital of BVICo was US$50,000 dwvided into 50,000
shares of par value US$1 00 each One share in the capital of BVICo was 1ssued to NewHoldCo
for a consideration of US$1 00 on 12 February 2010

8. Head office relocation

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in keeping wih the introduction of a new ultimate
holding company that 1s incorporated in the Cayman Islands, NewHoldCo's registered office will be
in the Cayman Islands BVICo's registered office will be in the Briish Virgin Islands NewHoldCo
and BVICo will both have their pnincipal place of business, from which the Group will be managed
and controlled, in China

None of the Company, NewHoldCo nor BVICo have any plans to alter existing arrangements with
employees or to change the locations of the Group's places of business as a result of or following
Scheme

9. NewHoldCo Articles

The economic nghts attaching to the New Shares will, after the Scheme becomes eftective, be
substantially the same as the rights attaching to EBT Shares

As NewHoldCo 1s incorporated in the Cayman Islands, 1t will be subject to the laws of the Cayman
Islands As the laws of the Cayman Islands do not contain certain statutory safeguards (e g pre-
emption nghts) that Enghsh law does, NewHoldCo has adopted and enshnned these safeguards in
the NewHoldCo Articles A summary of the NewHcldCo Articles 1s set out 1n paragraph 14 of Part
4 of this document and details of the differences between English company law and the company
law of the Cayman Islands are set out in paragraph 16 of Part 4 of this document

10 Share Schemes

The Company has established the Share Schemes Summanes of the principal features of these
schemes are set out in paragraph 21 of Part 4 of this document

11. Directors’ and other interests

The names of the Directors and details of their interests (and those of their connected persons) tn
the Company and in NewHoldCo following the Effective Date and under the Share Schemes as at
22 June 2010 (being the last practicable date pnor to the publication of this document) are set out
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of Part 4 of this document

In common with the other participants in the Share Schemes, the Directors will be able to exercise
their options or to accept any offer made by NewHoldCo to exchange their options over Shares for
options over New Shares as descnbed In paragraph 21 of Part 4 of this document

All of the existing Directors were appointed directors of NewHoldCo on 8 Apnl 2010 and of BVICo
cn 12 February 2010 The dwectors of NewHoldCo and BVICo have been appointed to the
respective boards of NewHoldCo and BVICo in the same capacites they currently held on the
Board

In all materal respects, the terms of the Directors’ appointments as directors of NewHoldCo and
BVICo are the same as the Diectors’ existing arrangements with the Company, details of which
are set cut in paragraph 7 of Part 4 of this document

The effect of the Scheme on the interests of the Directors does not differ from its effect on the lke
interests of any other EBT Shareholders
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12. New Shares and settlement
12.1 Issue of New Shares

The New Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme will be 1ssued credited as fully paid and
free from all hens, charges and encumbrances whatsoever, and will rank in full for all dvidends or
distnbutions on the ordinary share capital of NewHoldCo declared, made or paid after the Effective
Date The New Shares will be denominated in pounds Sterling

Following the Scheme becoming effective, the New Shares will not be hsted on any stock
exchange

12 2 Settiement

Subject 10 the Scheme becoming effective (and excepl as prowided n paragraph 14 below In
relaton to certain Overseas Shareholders), settlement of the consideration to which any
Shareholder 15 entitied under the Scheme will be effected in the manner set out In this section

At the Effective Date, each New Share to which each EBT Shareholder 1s entiled as at the
Scheme Record Time will be 1ssued in registered form Each holdng of New Shares will be
entered into the register ot members of NewHoldCo, which will constitute evidence of ownership of
such shares pursuant to the Companies Law Share certificates in respect of the New Shares
will only be i1ssued by NewHoldCo following written request by the relevant New
Shareholder. Shareholders should note that the New Shares are not capable of being held
in CREST.

As from the Effective Date

(a}) any holding of Scheme Shares credited to any stock account in CREST will be disabled as
trom the Effective Date and all Scheme Shares will be removed from CREST, and

(b) each cerbficate representing a holding of Scheme Shares will cease to be of value and
should be destroyed

From the Effective Date, setilement of transfers of New Shares through CREST will not be
possible Shareholders with quenes or wishing to request share certificates In respect of New
Shares or to register transfers of New Shares should contact or, in the case of registration of
transiers of New Shares, prowide complete transfer forms to, NewHoldCo's directors, c/o is
registered office service provider, Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary
Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-3005 Cayman Islands On the regssiration of any such fransfers, the
transferee will not receive a share certificate in respect of such New Shares unless written request
15 made to NewHoldCo

All mandates relating io the payment of dividends and other instructions given to the Company by
EBT Shareholders in force at the Scheme Record Time relating to heldings of Scheme Shares will,
unless and untl amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date to be an effective
mandate or instruction to NewHoldCo in respect of the corresponding New Shares

13. Taxation

Certain United Kingdom and Cayman Islands tax considerations relevant to EBT Shareholders are
summarnsed in Part 3 of this document

14 Overseas Sharehoiders
14 1 General

The imphcations of the Scheme for EBT Shareholders who are resident in, or cihizens or nationals
of, wunsdictions outside the United Kingdom (“Overseas Shareholders”) may be affected by the
laws of the relevant junsdictions Such Overseas Shareholders should inform themselves about and
observe alt apphicable legal requirements

It 1s the responsibiity of any person into whose possession this document comes to satisfy
themselves as to ther full observance of the laws of the relevant junsdiction in connection with the
Scheme, including the obtaning of any governmental, exchange control or other consents which
may be required andfor compliance with other necessary formalties which are required to be
observed and the payment of any i1ssue, transfer or other taxes due in such junsdiction

If, in respect of any Overseas Sharehoider, NewHoldCo 1s advised that the allotment and/or issue
of New Shares would or might infringe the laws of any junsdiction outside the Umited Kingdom, or
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would or might require NewHoldCo to obtain any governmentai or other consent or effect any
registration, filng or other formality with which, in the opinion of NewHoldCo, 1t would be unable to
comply or which 1t regards as unduly onerous to comply with, the Scheme provides that
NewHoldCo may, In its sole discretion, determine ether (a) that New Shares shall not be allotted
and 1ssued to such holder but shall nstead be allotted and issued to a nominee appointed by
NewHoldCo and then sold, with the net proceeds being remited to the Shareholder concerned, or
{b} that New Shares shall be i1ssued to such holder and then sold on his behalf as soon as
practicable following the Effective Date at the best price which can reasonably be obtained at the
time of sale, with the net proceeds being remitted to the Shareholder concerned Any remittance of
the net proceeds of sale referred to in this paragraph shall be at the nsk of the relevant holder

Overseas Shareholders should consult their own legal and tax advisers with respect to the legal
and tax consequences of the Scheme n their particular circumstances.

14 2 United States

The New Shares will be 1ssued In rehance on the exemption from the registration requirements of
the Securties Act provided by Section 3(a)(10) thereof and will not be registered under the
secunties laws of any state or other junisdiction of the United States

For the purpose of qualifying for the exemption from the registration requirements of the Secunties
Act provided by Section 3(a)(10) thereof, the Company will advise the Court that its sancticning of
the Scheme will be relied upon by NewHo!dCo as an approval of the Scheme following a heanng
on its farrness to Scheme Shareholders, at which Court Hearing all Scheme Shareholders are
entiled to attend in person or through counsel to support or oppose the sanctioning of the Scheme
and with respect to which notification has been given to all such Shareholders

Shareholders who are “affiiates” (as such term 1s defined n Rule 144 of the Secunties Act) of the
Company prior to implementation of the Scheme, or NewHoldCo after the Effective Date, may not
resell such New Shares without registration under the Secuntes Act except pursuant to the
apphicable resale provisions of Rute 145(d) under the Securties Act, another applicable exemption
from registration under the Secunties Act or In a transaction not subject to registration under the
Secunties Act “Affihates” of a company are generally defined as persons who directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermedianes, control, or are controlled by, or are under common control
with, that company Whether a person 1s an affiiate of the company for the purpose of the
Secunties Act depends on the circumstances, but affiiates can include certain officers, directors
and significant shareholders Persons who believe they may be affibates of the Company or
NewHoldCo should consult therwr own legal advisers before any sale of secunties received In the
Scheme Any persons who hold Scheme Shares that are ‘restricted securities” within the meaning
of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Securntes Act will receive New Shares that are subject to the same
restnctions as their Scheme Shares

Neither the SEC nor any US state securithes commission has reviewed or approved this document,
the Scheme or the New Shares Any representation to the contrary 1s a cnminal office in the
United States

15 The Meetings

Before the Court's approval can be sought to sanction the Scheme, the Scheme will require the
approval of EBT Shareholders at the Court Meeting and, for its implementation, at the General
Meeting

Notices of each of the Court Meeting and of the General Meeting are set out in Part 7 and Parl 8
of this document respectively Enttlement to attend and vote at these Meetings and the number of
votes which may be cast at them will be determined by reference to the Company's reqister of
members at 600 pm on the Business Day pnor to the Business Day immedately before the
Meeting or any adjourned Meeting {as the case may be)

15.1 Court Meeting

The Court Meeting has been convened jor 27 July 2010 at the offices of Hogan Lovells
International LLP, Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG to enable EBT Shareholders
to consider and, if thought fit, approve the Scheme At the Court Meeting, voting will be by poll
and each member present i person or by proxy will be entitted to one vote for each EBT Share
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held The approval required at the Court Meeting 1s a simple majonty In number representing 75 per
cent n value of those EBT Shareholders present and voting in person or by proxy

It 1s important that, for the Court Meeting in particular, as many votes as possible are cast
so that the Court may bhe satisfied that there 1s a fair and reasonable representation of
Scheme Shareholder opinion.

if the Scheme 1s approved and becomes effective, it will be binding on all Scheme Shareholders
irrespective of whether they attended the Court Meeting or the way they voted

15.2 General Meeting

In addition, the General Meeting has been convened for the same date and place (o be held
immediately after the Court Meeting} to consider and, ¢ thought {1, pass a Special Resolution
(which requires a vote in favour of not less than 75 per cent of the votes cast) to approve

{a) authonsing the Directors to take all action as may be considered necessary or appropnate for
implementing the Scheme,

{b) the cancellation and extinguishing of the Scheme Shares 'n relation 1o the Scheme,
() the creation of the New Company Shares in relation to the Scheme,
(d) the allotment of the New Company Shares to BVICo,

() condional on the Scheme becoming effective, amendment to the EBT Articles to deal with
transitional matters ansing from the Scheme

The Special Resolution proposed at the General Meeting will be decided by way of a poll On the
poll, each Shareholder present in person or by proxy will have one vote for each EBT Share held

16. Action to be taken

Whether or not you propose to attend the Meelings, you are requested to complete, sign and
return to Capia Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, the enclosed
white Form of Proxy for use at the Court Meeting and the blue Form of Proxy for use al the
General Meeting by no later than 48 hours (excluding non-working days) betore the time appointed
for the relevant Meeting If the white Form of Proxy relating to the Court Meeling ts not lodged by
the above time, t may be handed to the Chairman of the Court Meeting before the start of the
Court Meeting and will stll be valild However, in the case of the General Meeting, unless the blue
Form of Proxy 1s returned at least 48 hours {excluding non-working days) before the General
Meeting and in accordance with the instruchions printed on 1it, it will be invahd The completion and
return of a Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at either the
Court Meeting or the General Meeting, If you so wish and are so entitled

17. Recommendation

The Directors consider the Scheme to be fair and reasonable In addition, the Directors believe the
Scheme 10 be In the bhest interests of Shareholders as a whole and, accordingly, unanimously
recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting, as they intend
to do in respect of therr own legal or beneficial shareholdings, totaling 66,402,401 EBT Shares
(represeniing in aggregate approximately 24 6 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Cormpany)

The Directors urge you toe complete, sign and return the enclosed Forms of Proxy as soon
as possible and, in any event, by no later than 300 pm (in respect of the white Form of
Proxy for use at the Court Meeting) or 3.30 p m. (in respect of the blue Form of Proxy for
use at the General Meeting) on 23 July 2010

18 Further information

The Scheme 15 set out in full In Part 5 of this document Your attention 1s also drawn to the
additional informaton set out in Part 4 and to the defimticns in Part 6 of this document

Yours faithfully

Mark Qiu
Non-Executive Chairman
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PART 2
FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The Company apphied International Financial Reporttng Standards, endorsed by the European
Union, as the basis for preparation of its financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2009, 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 These financial statements are prepared on the
histoncal cost basis

1.  Statutory accounts for financlal periods ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007

Statutory accounts of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007, In
respect of which the Company's auditors, Deloitte LLP, made unquahfied reports, have been
delivered to and filed with the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales

2. Published report and accounts for financlal periods ended 31 December 2007, 31 December
2008 and 31 December 2009

The publhshed annual report and audited accounts of the Company for the financial penods ended
31 December 2007, 2008 and 2009 {(which are incorporated into this document by reference)
included, on the pages specified in the table below, the following information

Nature of information For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Income statement showing turnover, Page 9 Page 9 Page 3
net profit or loss before and after (Consclidated (Censolidated {Consolidated
taxation, the charge for tax, Report) Report) Report)
extraordinary items, minonty interests
and the amount absorbed by
dividends and earnings and dividends
per share
Balance sheet showing ithe assets Page 11 Page 11 Page 5
and habilities of the Group (Consolidated (Consolidated (Consolidated
Report) Report) Report)
Cash flow statement Pages 13-14 Pages 12-13 Pages 6-7
{(Consolidated {Consolidated (Consohdated
Report) Report) Report)
Accounting policies Pages 16-26 Pages 15-24 Pages 8-17
{Consolidated (Conschdated {Consoldated
Report) Report) Report)
Notes to the financial statements Pages 15-45 Pages 14-45 Pages 8-39
(Conschdated {Consolidated {Consolidated
Report) Report) Report)
Independent auditors’ report Pages 7-8 Pages 7-8 Pages 1-2
{Consolidated (Consolhdated {Consolidated
Report} Report} Report)

The published financial information referenced above (and, where applicable, incorporated into this
document by reference) can be viewed at www ebtmobile com

A hard copy of the above-referenced financial information will not be sent to recipients of this
document unless speciically requested Recipients of this document may request a hard copy of
the above-referenced financial information of the Company by writing to the company secretary of
the Company, Capita Company Secretanal Services Limited, at The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU Relevant documents will be posted within two working days of receipt
of such a request -
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PART 3
TAXATION

The following information, which 1s intended as a general guide only, relates to the United
Kingdom taxation position of EBT Shareholders who are resident and ordinarily resident in
the United Kingdom and to the Cayman Islands tax position of NewHoldCo and its
shareholders. The statements are based on current legislation and practice in the United
Kingdom and the Cayman Islands and do not purport to be comprehensive or to describe
all potential relevant considerations. EBT Shareholders should note that both taxation law
and interpretation are subject to change, possibly with retrospective effect.

The statements in this Part summarnise certain imited aspects of the taxation treatment of
the Scheme, do not constitute tax advice and relate only to the position of EBT
Shareholders who hold their Shares beneficially as an investment (other than under a
personal equity plan or an individual savings account) and who have not (and are not
deemed to have) acquired their EBT Shares by virtue of an office or employment They do
not address the tax consequences for EBT Shareholders who are brokers, dealers or
traders in shares or securities

Special tax provisions may apply to Shareholders whe have acquired or who acguire their
Shares by exercising options under the Share Schemes, Iincluding provisions 1mposing a
charge to income tax

If you are in any doubt as to your taxation position, or you are subject to taxation in a
jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom and the Cayman islands, you should consult a
professional independent financial adviser immediately.

1 United Kingdom
11 General

The following paragraphs, which are intended as a general gwide cnly, are based on current United
Kingdom legisiation and HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC”) practice, both of which may be
subject to change at any time, possibly with retrospective effect They summanse certain lmied
aspects of the United Kingdom taxation treatment of the Scheme, do not constitute tax adwice and
relate only to the posiion of Scheme Sharehoiders who are resident or ordnanly resident in the
United Kingdom for taxation purposes, who hold therr Scheme Shares beneficially as an investment
(other than under a personal equity plan or an individual savings account) and who have not (and
are not deemed to have) acquired therr Scheme Shares by virtue of an office or employment They
do not address the United Kingdom tax conseguences for Scheme Shareholders who are brokers,
dealers or traders in shares or secunties

Special tax provisions may apply to Scheme Shareholders who have acquired or who acquire therr
Scheme Shares by exercising options under the Share Schemes, including provisions 1mposing a
charge to income tax

If you are in any doubt as to your taxation position, or you are subject to taxation in a junsdiction
other than the United Kingdom, you should consult a professional independent financial adviser
immediately

1.2 Taxation of chargeable gains

For a Scheme Shareholder who, erther alone or together with persons connected with him, holds 5
per cent or less of the Scheme Shares, implementation of the Scheme should not result in such
Scheme Shareholder making & disposal or part disposal of Scheme Shares for the purposes of
United Kingdom taxation of chargeable gains Any gain or loss which would ctherwise have ansen
on a disposal of such holder's Scheme Shares should be “rolled-over” into his New Shares and
the New Shares should accordingly be treated as the same asset and as having been acquired at
the same time and for the same consideration as the Scheme Shares in respect of which they
were 1ssued

A Scheme Shareholder who, either alone or together with persons connected with him, holds more
than 5 per cent of the Scheme Shares 1s advised that the Company has received clearance from
HMRC pursuant o section 138 of the Taxaton of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 that HMRC s
satisfied that the Scheme 15 being effected for bona fide commercial reasons and does not form
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part of a scheme of arrangement of which the main purpese, or one of the main purposes, 1s the
avoidance of labiity to capital gans tax or corporation tax Accordingly, any such Scheme
Shareholder should be treated in the manner described above

13 Stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT")

The cancellation of Scheme Shares and the 1ssue of New Shares {(whether paper shares or shares
transferred into CREST) pursuant to the Scheme will not gve nse to a charge to stamp duty or
SDRT

2. Cayman Islands

There 18, at present, no direct taxaton in the Cayman Islands and interest, dnvidends and gains
payable to the NewHoldCo will be received free of all Cayman Islands taxes NewHoldCo 1s
registered as an “exempted company” pursuant to the Companies Law (as amended} NewHoldCo
has applied for and received an underaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands
to the effect that, for a penod of twenty years from 13 Apnl 2010, no law that thereafter 1s enacted
in the Cayman lIslands imposing any tax or duty to be levied on prefits, income or on gamns or
appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inhentance tax, will apply to any property
comprised In or any income ansing under NewHoldCeo, or to the shareholders thereof, in respect of
any such property or income Accordingly, 1t 1s not envisaged that the company will be subject to
any taxation in the Cayman Islands other than n relation o incidental registry fees and stamp
duties on certain instruments entered nto by it

There are currently no withholding taxes or exchange control regulations in the Cayman Islands
applicable to the Company or its shareholders

There are currently no estate duty, gifts or gains taxes in the Cayman Islands applicable to the
New Shares or to any income or gains that a Shareholder denves either from holding or pursuant
to any transfers or redemptions of such shares
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PART 4
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1.  Responsibility

The Directors, whose names are set out in paragraph 4 of this Par, accepl responsibility for the
information contained in this document To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors
(who have taken all reascnable care to ensure that such I1s the case), the information contained n
thus document for which they are responsible 1s in accordance with the facts and does not omit
anything hkely to affect the import of such information

2 Incorporation and activity of the Company

The Company was Incorporated under the name TradingSports Exchange Systems Limited on
3 February 2003 under the Compames Act 1985 as a private company mited by shares and
registered In England and Wales with registered number 4654471 On 21 May 2003 it re-registered
as a public company limited by shares and changed its name to TradingSports Exchange Systems
PLC On 21 September 2004 it changed its name to The Trading Exchange PLC and on
7 September 2005 it changed its name to EBT Mobile China PLC

The Company's registered office 15 al Phoenix House, 18 King Willam Street, London EC4N 7HE

The Company 1s a holding company for a group of companies whose prnncipal activities are the
retall sale of mobile phone products and services, including mobile phones, SIM cards, phone
cards, mobile phone accessones and mobile phone related value-added services in China

3 Share capital of the Company

The authensed and issued share capital of the Company as at 22 June 2010 (being the latest
practicable date prior to publication of this document) 1s as follows

Authorised issued and paid
Normunal Nominal
Class Number Value Number Value
Ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each 400,000,000 £400,000 269,756,335 £269,756 34

4. Directors and secretary of the Company
The Directors and their respective positions are

Name Position held

Mr Mark Quu Charrman and non-executive director

Mr Zhang Ge Chief Executive Officer and executive director
Mr James A Reiman Non-executive director

Mr Daniel Skaff Non-executive director

Mr Stephen Davidson Non-executive director

The business address of each of the Directors 1s Phoenix House, 18 King Willam Street, London
EC4N 7HE

The company secretary of the Company s Capita Company Secretarial Services Limited, Ibex
House, 42-47 Minones, London EC3N 1DX
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5. Directors’ interests in the Company

As at the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this document, the interests of the
Directors, their immediate famiies and persons connected with such Directors within the meaning
of section 252 of the Companies Act, In the share capital of the Company were as follows

Percentage of
existing 1ssued
Number of ordinary share

Shares capital
Mr James A Reiman’ 58,297,045 216
Mr Zhang Ge 7,045,356 26
Mr Stephen Davidson? 1,060,000 04
Mr Mark Chu® — —
Mr Daniel Skaff* e —
Total 66,402,401 246

Notes

1 The interests of James A Reiman include the holding of 58,297,045 EBT Shares indirectly held by CRV through Vidacos
Nominees Limited CRV 1s 100 per cent owned by Mr Rerman Further details of CRV's shareholding in the Company are set
out in paragraphs 8 and 9 of this Part

2 The mnterests of Stephen Davidson include the holding of 60,000 Shares held by Hargreave Hale Norminees Limited as
nominee for Stephen Davidson

3 Mark Quu s connected with China Harvest Fung, L P, which indirectly holds approximately 24 7 per cent of the existing share
capital of the Company as 1t holds approximately 97 83 per cent of the existng share capial of Ringtone Mr Quu disclaims
beneficial ownership of the share capital of the Company held by Ringtone except to the extent of his pecuniary interest
therein Further details of Ringtone’s shareholding in the Company are sel out in paragraphs 8 and 9 of this Part

4 8,000,000 Shares held by James A Reiman via CRV are held as nominee for the Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust, a trust to
which Daniel Skaff 1s connected Following the Scheme becoming effective, CRV has agreed to transfer the legal title 1o the
corresponding number of New Shares to the Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date prnor to the publication of this document, the
options and awards held by the Directors under the Share Schemes were as follows

Number of Exercise
shares under price (GBP Period i which options
option per share) Date of grant can be exercised
Mr James A Reiman 1,000,000’ 0025 01/01/2009 See paragraph 21 2{c)
of Part 4 of this
document
Mr Stephen Dawvidson 1,000,000’ 0025 01/01/2009 See paragraph 21 2(c)
of Part 4 of this
document
Mr Daniel Skaff 1,000,000' 0025 01/01/2009 See paragraph 21 2(c)
of Part 4 of this
document
Mr Zhang Ge 400,000° 0 ¢O1 01/07/2007 See paragraph 21 2(c)
of Part 4 of this
document

Notes
1 Options under the EBT Mobile China plc share option scheme 2009
2 Optons under the EBT Mobile China plc share option scheme 2007

Save as set out in this Part of the document, none of the Directors or any connected person within
the meaning of sectton 252 of the Companies Act has any interest, whether beneficial or non-
beneficial, in the share capital of the Group and there 1s no person to whom any capital of any
member of the Group 15 under option or agreed unconditionally to be put under option

Following the Effective Date, the Directors will have corresponding interests in New Shares by
viriue of the effect of the Scheme on therr existing interests in EBT Shares
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6  Directors’ irrevocable undertakings

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, the
Company was in receipt of irrevocable underakings to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Court
Meeting from each of the Directors who hold legal title to EBT Shares, being Stephen Davidson
and Zhang Ge, as well as from those Directors who hold options over EBT Shares, as set out In
paragraph 5 of this Part In addition, as at that date, the Company was 1n receipt of an irrevocable
undertaking to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting from CRV, with which James A
Reiman 1s connected as se! out in paragraph 5 of this Part Further detals of CRV's interest in
Shares and the irrevocable undertaking given by it are set cut in paragraphs 8 and 9 of this Part

The Company has received irrevocable undertakings to vote in favour of the Scheme at the Count
Meeting from Directors who represent, legally or beneficially, directly or indrectly, approximately
24 6 per cent of the existing issued share capital of the Company. as set out I1n paragraph 5 of
this Part

7. Directors’ remuneration and benefits

The Company does not have any executive directors other than Zhang Ge The Directors’
appointments are subject to the terms of the EBT Articles and the Shareholders’ Agreement,
detalls of which are set out i paragraph 22 of this Part

Mark Qu, Zhang Ge and James Reman have been appointed pursuant to the terms of the
Shareholders’ Agreement, further details n relation to which are set out in paragraph 22 of this
Part Appointment and removal of these Directors shall be by way of wntten nolice to the
Company, which shall take effect on delivery at the Company’s registered office or at any meeting
of the Board or a commitiee thereof In the event that any relevant Shareholder appointing such a
Director ceases to hold Shares representing a specified percentage of the i1ssued share capital of
the Company, the Director appointed by such Shareholder shall resign immediately None of the
Directors has any nght to compensation upon early termination of their appaintments

The following terms apply to the Directors

Date of appointment Annual fees (USS)

Mr Mark Qiu 18/08/2009 N/A
Mr Zhang Ge 08/09/2005 N/A
Mr James A Reiman 08/09/2005 N/A
Mr Stephen Davidson 11/07/2006 25,000
Mr Damiel Skatf 24/10/2005 20,000

In addiion to the fees shown above, James A Rewmman, Stephen Dawidson, Danel Skaff and
Zhang Ge also hold interests in the Share Schemes Detalls of these interesis are set out In
paragraph 5 of this Part and details of the Share Schemes are set out in paragraph 21 of this
Part

There are no service contracts between any Director or proposed director of the Company and any
member of the Group and no such contract has been entered into or amended within the six
months preceding the date of this document

There 1s no arrangement under which a Director has wawved or agreed to waive future emoluments
nor have there been any such waivers during the financial year immediately preceding the date of
this document

There are no oulstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by any member of the Group to,
or for the benefit of, any of the Directors

Other than as described in this paragraph 7, no benefit, payment or compensation of any kind 1s
payable to any Director ot the Company upon terminatton of lus or her employment
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8. Interests of major Shareholders

Insofar as i1s known to the Company as at 22 June 2010 (being the last practicable date pror 1o
publication of this document), other than a Director, the following persons have an interest in 3 per
cent or more of the Company’s capital

Percentage of
issued share

Number of Shares capital
Ringtone Investment Limited 66,611,111" 247
Vidacos Nominees Limited 58,297,045° 216
KB (C1) Nominees Limited 56,165,000° 208
HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) Limited 36,091,754* 134
Rock Nominees Limited 10,282,742° 38

Notes
1 Ringtone 1s also the beneficial owner, but not the registered holder, of an additional 43,096 EBT Shares
2 Held as nominee for CRV See paragraph 9 of this Part for further details

3 Held as nominee for Audley European Opportunities Master Fund Limited, Audley Investment | and Audley Investment |I See
paragraph 9 of this Part for further details

4 Held as nominee for Tartan Investmemnt Partners, L P See paragraph 9 of this Part for further details
5 Held as nominee for approximately 53 beneficial owners

Each of Ringtone, Audley (acting as investment manager for Audley European Opportunities
Master Fund Lumited, Audley Investment | and Audley Investment Il} and Tartan (acting as
investment manager for Tartan Investment Partners, L P) has agreed, subject to the Scheme
becoming effective, to purchase the numbers of New Shares from CRV set out in the table below
for a consideration of 4 pence per New Share together with additional consideration payable by the
relevant purchaser to CRV of 50 per cent of the amount over 4 pence per New Share that such
purchaser receives Iin the event of any subsequent disposal of such New Shares to any third party

In addition, following the Scheme becoming effective, CRV has agreed to transter the legal title to
8,000,000 New Shares to the Danmel and Michelle Skatf Trust {(as referred 1o In footnote 4 to the
table setting out the interests of the Directors, thewr immediate families and persons connected with
such Directors in paragraph 5 of this Part)

Following completion of the acquisitions and transfers agreed as set out above, each of Ringtone,
Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Daniel and Michelle Skaff Trust will have interests in NewHoldCo as
set out In the table below

Percentage of
Total number of NewHoldCo's

Number of New New Shares 1ssued share

Shares to be held following  capital following

acquired from proposed proposed

CRV transactions transactons

Ringtone Investment Lirmted 21,303,014 87,914,125 326

Audley Capital Management Limited’ 18,002,547 74,167,547 275

Tartan Investment Partners Fund GP Limited? 10,701,513 46,793,267 17 3

The Daniel and Michelle Skatf Trust 8,000,000 8,000,000 30

China Retall Venture #1, Inc — 289,971 01
Notes

1 Actng as mnvestment manager for Audley European Opportunities Master Fund Limited, Audtey Investment | and Audley

Investment |

2 Achng as investment manager for Tartan Investment Panners, L P

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 8, the Directors are not aware of any interest which will
represent 3 per cent or more of the 1ssued share capial of NewHoldCo following the Scheme
becoming effective

So far as the Company 1s aware, no person or persons, directly or indirectly, jointly or severally
exercise or could exercise control over the Company
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There are no differences between the voting nghts enjoyed by the EBT Shareholders descnbed in
this paragraph 8 and those enjoyed by any other holder of Shares

9  Major Sharehclders’ consents and irrevocable undertakings

Pursuant to the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the Scheme and the subsequent proposed
Re-organisation require the prior written consent of Ringlone and at least three of Audley, Taran,
CRV and the Director appomnted by the Managers Further details of the Shareholders' Agreement
are set out in paragraph 22 of this Part

Each of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers has given its or his wnitten consent to
the Scheme and the proposed Re-organisation In addition, as at the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of this document, the Company was in receipt of wrevocable undertakings io vote in
favour of the Scheme at the Court Meeting from each of Ringtone (which holds approximately 24 7
per cent of the existing share capital of the Company}, Audley (acting as investment manager for
Audley European Opportunities Master Fund Limited, Audley Investment | and Audley Invesiment
i, which together held approximately 208 per cent of the existing share capital of the Company
through KB (C 1) Nominees Limited), Tartan (acting as investment manager for Tartan Investment
Partners, L P, which holds approximately 134 per cent of the existing share capital of the
Company through HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) Limited), CRV (which holds approximately
21 6 per cent of the existing share capital of the Company through Vidacos Nominees Limited} and
the Managers (who collectively hold approximately 3 8 per cent of the existing share capital of the
Company)

10. Incorporation and activity of NewHoldCo

NewHoldCo was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 February 2010 under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with the name EBT Digital Communications Retall Group and with
registered number WK-237161

NewHoldCo's registered office 1s at the offices of Walkers Corporate Semwices Limited, Walker
House, 87 Mary Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005

NewHoldCo has not traded since incorporation and has undertaken no actvities other than those
associated with its administration and the Scheme

11 Share capital of NewHoldCo

Pursuant to NewHoldCo's memorandum of association s current authonsed share capital 1s
£400,000 divided into 400,000,000 shares of 0 1 pence each The authorised share capital can be
increased by a special resolution of its shareholders

On ncorporation, the initial authonsed share capial of NewHoldCo was £400,000 divided into
4,000,000 shares of par value £0 10 each in the capita! of NewHoldCo One share m the capital of
NewHoldCo was 1ssued toc Walkers Nomnees Limited, the subscnber 10 NewHoldCo's
memorandum of association {such share being the "Subscriber Share”™) The Subscnber Share
was transferred to Ringtone for a consideration of £0 10 on 8 Apnl 2010 Ringtone subscnbed for a
further 99 new shares of par value £0 10 each in the capital of NewHoldCo on 8 Apnl 2010 By
shareholder resolutions dated 20 May 2010, Ringtone resclved to vary the share capital of
NewHoldCo from £400,000 divided into 4,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nommnal or par value of
£0 10 each, to £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary Shares of a nominal or par value of 01
pence each, and 1o subdivide the shares in the capital of NewHoldCo which had been i1ssued to
Ringtone into 10,000 shares of 01 pence each (the "Ringtone Shares”) Upon the Scheme
becoming effective, NewHoldCo will repurchase the Ringtone Shares for nominal consideration and
the Ringtone Shares will then be cancelled

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 11, at the date of this document, there has been no i1ssue of
share or toan captal of NewHoldCo since its incorporation and no share or loan capital of
NewHoldCo 1s under option or agreed to be put under option

Save as disclosed in paragraph 18 of this Pan, at the date of this document, NewHoldCo has no
subsidianes and, accordingly, there has been no matenal 1ssue of share or lean capital by any
subsithary undertaking of NewHoldCo for cash or other consideration

The New Shares have not been marketed, and are not avalable in whole or in part to the publc
otherwise than pursuant 1o the Scheme No commussions, discounts, brokerages or other special
terms have been granted in respect of the 1ssue of any share capital of NewHoldCo
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The Scheme will result n EBT Shareholders being allotted New Shares in place of ther existing
EBT Shares and in the Company becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of BVICo As a
consequence, NewHoldCo will become the new parent company of the Group This 1s to be
achieved by

(a) cancelling the Scheme Shares on the Effective Date and applying the reserve ansing from
such cancellaton i paying up in full a number of New Company Shares which 1s equal to
the number of Scheme Shares cancelled and 1ssuing such New Company Shares to BVICo,

{b) BVICo issuing the New BVI Share to NewHoldCo in consideration for the 1ssue of the New
Company Shares by the Company to it, and

(c) NewHoldCo 1ssuing the New Shares to the Shareholders in consideration for the 1ssue of the
New BVI Share by BVICo to it

Under the Scheme, Scheme Shareholders on the register of members at the Scheme Record Time
will recewve from NewHoldCo

for each Scheme Share cancelled one New Share

The New Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme will be 1ssued credited as fully paid and
free from all iens, charges and encumbrances whatsoever, and will rank 1n full for all dividends or
distrbutions on the ordinary share capital of NewHoldCo declared, made or paid after the Effective
Date The New Shares will be denominated in pounds Sterling

Accordingly, the proposed authonsed, issued and fully paid share capital of NewHoldCo as it will
be following the Effective Date, and before the purchase and cancellation of the Ringtone Shares
referred to in this paragraph 11, 1s as follows

Authonsed Issued and paid
Class Number Norminal Value Number Norminal Value
Shares of 0 1 pence each 400,000,000 £400,000 269,766,335 £269,766 34

The table set out above assumes there Is full exercise of options over EBT Shares between the
date of this document and the Effective Date

12. Directors and secretary of NewHoldCo

All of the existing Directors of the Company were appointed directors of NewHoldCo on 8 Apnl
2010 The directors of NewHoldCo have been apponted to the board of NewHoldCo in the same
capacities they currently hold on the Board

The business address of each of the directors of NewHoldCo 1s Walker House, 87 Mary Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005, Cayman lstands

13. NewHoldCo directors’ remuneration and benehits

In all matenal respects, the terms of the Directors’ appointments as directors of NewHoldCo are
the same as the Directors’ existing arrangements with the Company, details of which are set out in
paragraph 7 of this Part

There are no outstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by NewHoldCo to, or for the
benefit of, any of the directors of NewHoldCo

14, NewHoldCo Articles

The nghts and obligations of the New Shareholders are governed by the memorandum and articles
of association of NewHoldCo You should examine the memorandum and articles of association of
NewHoldCo carefully and consult with your own legal counsel concerning these nghts and
obligations before making a decision in relation to the Scheme

Memorandum of association

NewHoldCo's memorandum of association provides that NewHo!dCo's objects are unrestricted and
provide that NewHoldCo, iiter aha, has full power and authomty to carry out any object not
prohibited by law

Articles of association
The NewHoldCo Articles contain, infer aka, provisions to the following effect
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14.1 Directors

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Composttion of the board of directors

Unless otherwise determmned by NewHoldCo in general meetng, the number of
NewHoldCo Directors shall not be less than two and not more than five

Power to allot and 1ssue New Shares and warrants

Subject to the Companies Law and without prejudice to any special nghts or restrictions
for the time betng attached to any MNew Shares, all New Shares for the time being
unissued shall be under the control of the NewHoldCo directors who may issue, allot
and dispose of the same to such persons, in such manner, on such terms and having
such nghts and being subject to such restrictions as NewHoldCo may from time to time
determine by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders (or, In the absence of any such
resolution, as the board of directors of NewHoldCo may determine) and grant options
with respect to such New Shares and rssue warrants or similar instruments with respect
thereto, and, for such purpeses, the NewHo!dCo Directors may reserve an appropnate
nember of New Shares for the tme being unissued

Notwithstanding the above, and subject to certain hmited exceptions, before NewHoldCo
may 1ssue any New Shares, it must first offer each of the Key Shareholders the nght to
acquire a number of New Shares in the proportion which its exising holding of New
Shares bears to the total number of New Shares held by all of the Key Shareholders

Power to dispose of the assets of NewHoldCo

There are no specific provisions in the NewHoldCo Articles relating to the disposal of the
assets of NewHoldCo The NewHoldCo Board may, however, exercise all powers and do
all acts and things which may be exercised or done or approved by NewHoldCo and
which are not required by the NewHoldCo Articles or the Companies Law to be
exercised or done by NewHoldCo in generat meeting

Conflicts of interest

Subject 1o the Companies Law, and limited exceptions set out in the NewHoldCo
Articles, a NewHoldCo Director shall not vote (nor be counted in the quorum) in respect
of any contact or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he has an
interest which may be reasonably regarded as hkely to give nse to a conflict of interest
ctherwise than by virtue of his holding of New Shares or other securiies of or through
the Company

Remuneration

The ordinary remuneration of the NewHoldCo Directors shall from time to tme be
determined by the NewHoldCo Board except that such remuneration shall not exceed
US$300,000 per annum n aggregate or such lmgher sum as may from time to time be
determined by ordinary resolution of NewHoldCo and shall (unless such resolution
otherwise provides) be dmiisible among the NewHoldCo Directors as the NewHoldCo
Board may agree, or, falling agreement, equally, except that any NewHoldCo Director
who shall hold office for part only of the penod in respect of which such remuneration is
payable shall be entitled only to rank in such dvision for a proporion of remuneration
related to the pertod duning which he has held office

The NewHoldCo Board may repay to any NewHoldCo Director ail such reasonable
expenses as he may properly incur in attending and returning from meetings of the
NewHoldCo Board or of any commitiee of the MewHoldCo Board or general meetings or
otherwise in connection with the performance of his duties as a NewHoldCo Director

Retrement, appomntment and removal

At each annual general meeting one-third of the NewHcldCo Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation (or, if ther number 15 not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third) shall so retire provided always that all
NewHoldCo Directors must be subject to re-election at intervals of no more than three
years

The NewHoldCo Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary 1o
cbtain the number required) any NewHoldCo Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election Any further NewHoldCo Directors so 1o retire shall be those
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of the other NewHeldCo Directors subject to retrement by rotation who have been
longest in office since their last re-election and so that as beiween persons who became
or were last re-elected NewHoldCo Directors on the same day those to retire shall,
unless they otherwise agree among themselves, be determined by iot together with
those who In the absence of any such retirement would continue In office for a period In
excess of three years A retring NewHoldCo Director shall be eligible for re-election

NewHoldCo may by ordinary resolution appoint any person who 1s wiling to act to be a
NewHoldCo Director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the existing NewHoldCo
Board, but so that the total number of NewHoldCo Directors shall not at any time
excead any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with the NewHoldCo Articles
The NewHoldCo Board may also appoint NewHoldCo Directors

A NewHoldCo Director may be removed by an ordinary resolutton of NewHoldCo before
the expiration of his penod of office (but without prejudice to any clam which such
NewHoldCo Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him
and NewHoldCo) and may by ordinary resotution appoint another in his place

The office of a NewHoldCo Director shall be vacated if

(3 he ceases to be a NewHoldCo Directer by wvirtue of any provision of the
Companies Law or he becomes prohibited by any apphicable law from being a
NewHoldCo Director,

(1) he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangements or composition with his
creditors,

{(m} he dies or 1s found to be or becomes of unsound ment,
(v} he resigns by notice in wrting to NewHoldGo,

(v) he shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without
permission of the NewHoldCo Board from meetings of the NewHoldCo Board held
during that penod and the NewHoldCo Board resclves that his office be vacated, or

(v) notice stating he 1s removed from office as a NewHoldCo Director 1s served upon
him signed by all his co- NewHoldCo Directors who must account to the Members
at the next general meeting of NewHoldCo |f a NewHoldCo Director holds an
appointment to an executive office which automatically determines on his removal
from office under this or the preceding sub-tem such removal shall be deemed an
act of NewHoldCo and shall have effect without prejudice to any claim for damages
for breach of any contract of service between hm and NewHoldCo

(g) Borrowing powers

The NewHoldCo Directors may exercise all the powers of NewHoldCo to borrow money
and to mortgage or charge all or part of s underaking, property and uncalled capitai or
any par thereof, to 1ssue debeniures, debenture stock, and other secunties whenever
money 1s borrowed or as secunty for any debt, habibity or obligation of NewHoldCo or of
any third party

14 2 Requirements for annual general meetings
The NewHoldCo Directors shall convene a general meeting at least once each calendar year

14 3 Notices of general meetings and business to be conducted thereat

At least fourteen days’ notice m wrting, exclusive of the date service 1s deemed to take place and
the day on which the meeting I1s held, specitying the place, the day and the hour of the meeting
and, in case of special business, the general nature of that business (in which case such notice 1s
deemed a special notice), shall be given to such persons as are, under the NewHoldCo Articles,
entitled to receive such notices from NewHoldCo, but with the consent of New Shareholders
holding 95 per cent in nominal or par value of New Shares enttled to receive notice of some
particutar meeting and attend and vote thereat, that meeting may be convened by such shorter
notice or without notice and n such manner as those New Shareholders may think fit

All business carned out at a general meeting shall be deemed special with the exception of (a) the
consideration of the accounts, balance sheets, and any report of the NewHoldCo Directors or of
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NewHoldCo's auditors, (b) the appointment and removal of NewHoldCo Directors, and (c) the foang
of the remuneration of NewHoldCo's auditors

No special business shall be transacied at any general meeting without the consent of all members
of NewHoldCo enttled to receive notice of that meeting unless notice of such special business has
been given In the notice convening that meeting

14.4 Quorum for general meetings -

No business, other than the appointment of a chairman, shall be transacted at any general meeting
unless a quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business

The quorum for a general meeting shall be two members present in person or by proxy and
entitted to vote at that meeting

14 5 Special/ordinary resolution majorities required

Pursuant to the NewHoldCo Articles, a special resolution of NewHoldCo must be passed by a
majonty of not less than two-thirds of such members as, being entitled so to do, vote in person or,
In the case of such members being corporations, by thew duly authonsed representatives or, where
proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting of which notice, specfying the intention to
propose the resolution as a special resolution, has been duly given, or in wnting by all members of
NewHoldCo entitled to vote at a general meeting of NewHoldCo

An ordinary resolulion 1s defined in the NewHoldCo Articles to mean a resclution passed by a
simple majonty of such members as, being entitled to do so, vote in person or, In the case of such
members being corporatons, by ther duly authonsed representatives or, where proxies are
allowed, by proxy at a general meeting held in accordance with the NewHoldCo Articles, or in
wnting by a majonty of 75 per cent or more of the voles of New Shares entitled to vote at a
general meeting of NewHoldCo

14 6 Voting rights -

Subject to any nghts and restrictions for the time being attached to any New Share, on a show of
hands every New Shareholder present n person and every person representing a New
Shareholder by proxy shall, at a general meeting of NewHoldCo, each have one vote and on a poall
every New Shareholder and every person representing a New Shareholder by proxy shall have one
vote for each New Share of which he or the person represented by proxy is the holder

14 7 Modification of Rights

The nghts attached to any class of New Shares for the time being issued (unless otherwise
provided by the terms of 1ssue of the New Shares of that class) may only be vaned or abrogated
with the consent in wnting of the holders of not less than three-quarters 1n nominal or par value of
the 1ssued New Shares of the relevant class or with the sanction of a resclutton passed at a
separate meeting of the holders of the New Shares of such class by a majonty of three-quarters of
the votes cast at such a meeting To every such separate meeting all the prowisions of the
NewHoldCo Articles relating to general meetings of NewHMoldCo or to the proceedings thereat shatl,
mutatis mutandis, apply except that the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons at least
holding or representing by proxy one-third in nominal or par value amount of the issued New
Shares of the relevant class (but so that if at any adjourned meeting of such heolders a quorum as
above defined 1s not present, those holders of tssued New Shares of the relevant class who are
present shall be a quorum} and that every holder of issued New Shares of the class present may
demand a poll and every such person shall on a poll have one vote for each New Share of the
class held by such shareholder For such purposes, the NewHoldCo Directors may treat all
classes, or any two or more classes, as forming one class if the NewHoldCo Directors consider
that all such classes would be afiected in the same way by the proposals under consideration but
i any other case will treat them as separate classes

14.8 Transfer of New Shares

New Shares may be transferred in accordance with the NewHoldCo Articles, subject to the wniten
consent of the NewHoldCoc Directors by using such form or forms as may from time to time be
prescnbed by the NewHoldCo Directors and be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and if In
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respect of a mil or partly paid up New Share, or If so requrred by the NewHoldCo Directors, shall
also be executed on behalf of the transferee

The NewHoldCo Articles provide that, subject to certain exceptions, the Key Shareholders shall
not, and shall not agree to, transfer, mortgage, charge or otherwise dispose of the whole or any
part of his interest in, or grant any option or other nghts over, any New Shares in the capital of
NewHoldCo to any person, unless provisions setting out pre-emptive rights of transter to the other
Key Shareholders are first complied with

If a bona fide third party who 1s not an assoclate of a New Shareholder makes an arms’ length
ofter to the New Shareholders on the same terms for each New Shareholder 1o acquire all of ther
New Shares for cash {or for assets for which there 1s a ready market for sale in exchange for
cash) then New Shareholders who wish to accept the offer and who hold between them at least 50
per cent of the 1ssued New Shares may commence a process to require the remaining New
Shareholders to sell ther New Shares to the purchaser

If any transfer of New Shares would result in the transferee (including his associates) becoming
the holder of a controling interest in the New Shares, the ftransferor must require that the
transferee makes an ofter to all other New Shareholders to acquire therr New Shares for a
consideration per New Share at least equal to the highest consideration per New Share pad or
payable by the transferee for any New Share during the penod of 12 months ending on the date of
the offer

14.9 Dividends

Subject to any nghts and restrichons for the tme being attached to any New Shares, the
NewHoldCo Directors may from time 1o time declare dividends (including intenm dividends) and
other distnbutions on New Shares in 1ssue and authonse payment of the same out of the funds of
NewHoldCo lawfully avalable therefor

14 10 Procedures on liquidation

If NewHoldCo shall be wound up, the liguidator may, with the sanction of an ordinary resolution
divide amongst the New Shareholders in specie the whele or any part of the assets of NewHoldCo
(whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and may, for such purpose set
such value as he deems fair upon any property to be divided as atoresaid and may determine how
such dwision shall be carned out as between the New Shareholders or different classes The
hquidator may, with the bike sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon
such trusts for the benefit of the New Shareholders as the liquidator, with the ke sancton shall
think fit, but so that no New Shareholder shall be compelled to accept any asset whereon there Is
any hability

14 11 Amendments to the memorandum and articles of association of NewHoldCo

NewHoldCo's memorandum and articles of associaion may be amended by a special resolution of
the holders of the New Shares in accordance with the Companies Law

14.12 Other Righis and Liabilities
All New Shareholders are entitled to the benefit of, and are bound by and are deemed to have
notice of, the provisions of NewHoldCo's memorandum and articles of association Under the terms

of the memorandum and articles of association, the habity of any New Shareholder 1s mited to
the any amount unpaid on therr New Shares

15. Comparison between the EBT Articles and NewHoldCo Articles

The information in the table below 1s 1n summary form only, and you should examine the EBT
Aricles and the NewHoldCo Articles carefully before making a decision in relation to the Scheme

Subject EBT Articles NewHoldCo Articles
Composition of the The number of Directors shall not be  The number of NewHoldCo Directors
Board less than two and not more than six  shall not be less than two and not

more than five
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Subject

Power to allot and
1ssue shares

Power to dispose of
assets

Conflicts of interest

Remuneration of
directors

Retirement,
appointment and
removal

Borrowmg powers

Annual general
meetings

Notices of general
meetings

Quorum at general
meetings

Special resolution
majonties

EBT Articles

Subject to applicable laws, the power
to 1ssued urissued EBT Shares shall
rest with the Directors

No rnghts of pre-emption apply In
favour of the Key Shareholders

Directors may exercise all powers and
do all acts which may be performed by
the Company

Subject to exceptions, Directors may
not vote in relation 1o matters which
may (or may reasonably be regarded)
as giving nise to a conflict of interest

Directors’ aggregate rermuneration
shall not exceed US$300,000 per
annum {unless otherwise appraved by
ordinary resolution)

At each annual general mesting one-
third of the Directors shall retire and
be subject to re-election The
Company may appoint and remove
Directors by ordinary resolution The
Board may also appomnt and remove
Directors

The Board may exercise all of the
powers of the Company to borrow
money, to give guaraniees and to
charge or mortgage all or part of the
Company’s assets

The Board shall convene and the
Company shall hold annual general
meetings In accordance with the
requirements of applicable laws at
such time and place as the Board may
determine

An annual general meeting shall be
called by not fewer than 21 days’
nolice and any other general meeting
by not fewer than 14 days’ notice

Two holders of Shares (in person or
by proxy)

A special resolution can be passed in
general meeting by a majonty oi not
less that 75 per cent of the members
entitled to vote, and in wniting by
members representing 75 per cent of
the iotal voting nghts of eligible
members Whntten resolutions may
only be proposed by the directors or
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NewHoldCo Articles

Subject to nghts of pre-emphon in
favour of the Key Shareholders, the
power to 1ssued unissued New Shares
shall rest with the NewHoldCo
Directors

NewHoldCo Directors may exercise
all powers and do all acts which may
be performed by NewHoldCo

Subject to exceptions, NewHoldCo
Dwrectors may not vole in refation to
matters which may (or may
reasonably be regarded) as giving rnise
to a conflict of interest

NewHoldCo Directors’ aggregate
remunerahon shall not exceed
US$300,000 per annum {(unless
otherwise approved by ordinary
resotution)

At each annual general meeting one-
third of the NewHoldCo Directors shall
retire and be subject to re-election
NewHoldCo may appoint and remove
NewHoldCo Directors by ordinary
resoluton The NewHoldCo Board
may also appoint and remove
NewHoldCo Directors

The NewHo!dCo Directors may
exercise all of the powers of
NewHoldCo to borrow money, and to
charge or morigage all or part of
NewHoldCo’s assets

The NewHoldCo Directers shall
convene a general meeting at least
once in each calendar year

At least 14 days' notice in wnting to be
given

Two holders of New Shares (in person
or by proxy)

Two-third of the holders of New
Shares entitled to vote on the matter,
or all holders of New Shares entitled
to vote on the matter where the
resolution 1s taken in wniing




Subject

Ordinary reselution
majorities

Voting nghts

Modification of nights

Transfer of shares

Drag aleng nights

Tag along rights

Dwidends

EBT Arnticles

members holding at least 5 per cent of
the 1ssued shares {unless the articles
state a lower percentage) of the
Company The removal of a director
or auditer before the expiration of his/
its period of office may not be passed
by written resolution

An ordinary resolution can be passed
N a general meeting or in writing by
members representing a simple
majonty of the total voting nghts of
eligible members Written resolutions
may only be proposed by the directors
or members holding at least 5 per cent
of the 1ssued shares {(unless the
articles state a lower percentage) of
the Company The removatl of a
director or auditor before the
expiration of hisfits pertod of office
may not be passed by wntten
resolution

Subject to applicable law, each EBT
Shareholder present at a general
meeting {in person or by proxy) shall
have one vote on a show of hands and
cne vote for each EBT Share held by
him on a poll

Subject to applicable laws, the nghts
attached to any class of EBT Shares
In 1ssue may only be vared or
abrogated with the consent in writing
of the holders of not less than three-
quarters 1n nominal value of the
1ssued EBT Shares of the relevant
class

EBT Shares may be transferred with
the consent of the Board

No pre-emptive transter rights apply in
favour of the other Key Shareholders
In relation te any transier of EBT
Shares by a Key Shareholder

Drag along nghts will apply where
EBT Shareholders holding at least 50
per cent of the 1ssued EBT Shares
accept an offer by a bona fide third
party to acquire all of therr EBT
Shares

Tag along nghts will apply n relation
to any transfer of shares which would
result in the transferee acquinng a

centrolling interest in the EBT Shares

Final dividends
Subject to applicable laws, the
Company may by ordinary resclution
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NewHoldCo Articles

A simple majonty of the holders of
New Shares entiled to vote on the
matter, or a majonity of 75 per cent or
more of the votes of New Shares
enthtled to vote on the matter where
the resoiution 1s taken In writing

Each New Shareholder present at a
general meeting (in person or by
proxy) shall have one vote on a show
of hands and one vote for each New
Share held by him on a poll

The nghts attached to any class of
New Shares in i1ssue may only be
varied or abrogated with the consent
in writing of the holders of not less
than three-quarters in neminal or par
value of the 1ssued New Shares of the
relevant class

New Shares may be transferred with
the consent of the NewHoldCo
Directors

Pre-emptive transter nghts in favour of
the other Key Shareholders apply to
any transfer of New Shares by a Key
Shareholder

Drag aleng nights will apply where
New Shareholders holding at least 50
per cent of the 1ssued New Shares
accept an offer by a bona fide third
party to acquire all of theirr New
Shares

Tag along nghts will apply n relation
to any transfer of shares which would
result in the transferee acquinng a
controlling interest in the New Shares

The NewHoldCo Directors may from
time to time declare dividends




Subject

Liquidation

Amendments to

EBT Arlicles

declare dividends, but no such
dividend shall exceed the sum
recommended by the Board

Intenm dividends

The Board may declare and pay fixed
dividends on any class of Shares
carrying a fixed dwvidend, and may
also from time to time declare and pay
interim dividends

Subject 10 applicable laws, on a
hguidation of the Company, the
hgurdator may, with the sanction of a
special resolution divide amongst the
EBT Shareholders the whole or any
part of the assets of the Company and
may, for such purpose set such value
as he deems fair upon any one or
more classes of property and may
determine how such division shall be
carned out as between the EBT
Shareholders or different classes

Not provided for

NewHoldCo Articles
(including intenm dividends) i relation
to New Shares

On a hquidation of NewHoldCo, the
hquidator may, with the sanction of an
ordinary resolution divide amongst the
New Shareholders the whole or any
part of the assets of NewHoldCo and
may, for such purpose set such value
as he deems farr upon any property to
be divided as aforesaid and may
determine how such division shall be
carned out as between the New
Shareholders or different classes

NewHoldCo's memorandum and

memorandum and
articles of association

artictes ol association may be
amended by a special resolution of
the hotders of the New Shares

16. Principal differences between English and Cayman Islands company law

Shareholders of a Cayman Islands incorporated company may not have the same
protections (including protections against takeovers) which are equivalent to shareholders
of a company incorporated in England and Wales.

As NewHoldCo 1s incorporated in the Cayman Islands 1t 1s subject to the laws of that junsdiction
The Companies Act does not apply to NewHoldCo and Cayman Islands law does not provide
identical shareholder protections to those contained in the Companies Act Set out below 1s a
description of certain differences between companies incorporated in England and Wales and the
Cayman |slands

() Pre-emption nghts Shareholders do not have statutory pre-emption nghts under the
Comparnies Law over further 1ssues of shares in NewHoldCo Certain restrictions on the ability
of the NewHoldCo drectors to allot shares are contained in the NewHoldCo Aricles, which
may be amended by a special resolution of shareholders

(n) Takeovers The Companies Law does not contain provisions similar to those in the City Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “City Code”) which oblige a person or persons acquiring at
least 30 per cent of voting nghts in a company to which the City Code applies to make an
offer to acquire the remainder of the shares n such company The New Shares are subject
1o the compulsory acquistion (“Squeeze Out”) provisions set out in Section 88 of the
Compamies Law Under these provisions, any offeror making a takeover offer which, within
four months of making the offer, has been approved by the holders of not less than 90 per
cent in value of the shares to which the offer relates, 1s entitled to acquire compulsonly from
dissenting shareholders those shares which have nol been acquired or contracted to be
acquired on the same terms as under the offer

() Disclosure of interests in shares The rules on disclosure by shareholders of interests in a
company under the Exsclosure and Transparency Rules of the UK Financial Services Authornity
and under seclions 793 and related sections of the Companies Act are not applicable to
NewHoldCo Under the Companies Law, shareholders are not obhged to disclose their
interests in the NewHoldCo in same way as shareholders of a company governed by the
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Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Companies Act The NewHoldCo Articles
incorporate provisions relating to disclosures of interests in the Company, but these may be
amended by a special resolution of the shareholders

17. Incorporation and activity of BVICo

BVICo was incorporated in the Bntish Virgin Islands on 12 February 2010 under the BVI Business
Companies Act 2004 (as amended) of the British Virgin Islands as a business company with the
name EBT Digital Communications Retail Limited and with registered number 1571258

BVICo's registered office 1s at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services (BVIH) Limited, Walkers
Chambers, 171 Main Street, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands VG1110

BVICo has not traded since incorporation and has undertaken no activities other than those
associated with its administration and the Scheme

18. Share capital of BVICo

BVICo's memorandum of association imis the maximum amount of shares it may issue to, In
aggregate, US$50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of US$1 00 each

On incorporation, one share In the capital of BVICo was issued to NewHoldCo for a consideration
of US$1 00 on 12 February 2010

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 18, at the date of this document, there has been no 1ssue of
share or loan capital of BVICo since its wcorporation and no share or loan capital of BVICo 1s
under option or agreed to be put under option

At the date of this document, BVICo has no subsidianes and, accordingly, there has been no
material 1ssue of share or loan capital by any subsidiary undertaking of BVICo for cash or other
consideration

The New BVI Share has not been markeled, and i1s not avalable in whole or in part to the public
No commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted in respect of the
issue of any share capital of BVICo

Under the Scheme, BVICo will 1ssue the New BVIE Share, credited as fully pad, to NewHo!ldCo
Accordingly, the proposed authonsed, 1ssued and fully paid share capital of BVICc as it will be
following the Effective Date 1s as follows

Authonsed Issued and paid
Class Number Norminal Value Number Norminal Value
Shares of US%1 00 each 50,000 USS$50,000 P US$2 00

19. Directors of BVICo

All of the existing Directors of the Company were apponted directors of BVICo on 12 February
2010 The directors of BVICo have been appointed to the board of BVICo in the same capacities
they currently hold on the Beard

The business address of each of the directors of BVICo 15 Walkers Chambers, 171 Main Street,
Road Town, Tortola, Bnhsh Virgin Islands, VG1110

20. BVICo directors’ remuneration and benefits

In all matenal respects, the terms of the Directors’ appomtments as directors of BVICo are the
same as the Directors’ existing arrangements with the Company, detals of which are set out in
paragraph 7 of this Part

There are no outstanding loans or guarantees granted or provided by BVICo to, or for the benefit
of, any of the directors of BVICo

21. Share Schemes
21.1 Effect of the proposed Scheme on the Share Schemes

The majonty of options outstanding under the Share Schemes are already exercisable To the
extent that they are not, they will become exercisable for a penod of time either at the date of this
decument (in the case of the Trading Exchange plc long-term incentive plan 2004 and the
Tradingsports Exchange Systems plc “Everyman” long-term incentive plan 2004) or on the date on
which the Court sanctions the Scheme
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The Company and NewHoldCo propose to offer optionholders the opportunity to exchange their
options over EBT Shares for options over New Shares All other terms and conditions will remain
the same, as summansed below

21.2 The EBT Mobile China plc share option scheme 2007 and the EBT China plc share option
scheme 2009 (the “Schemes”’)

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this document, there
were options outstanding over 5,728,000 shares under the Schemes

{a) The Schemes

The Schemes apply only in relation to options exchanged for options over New Shares No
new options will be granted under the Schemes The rules of the Schemes are similar, except
where specified below

(by Admumstration
The Schemes are administered by the Board or a duly authonsed committee of the Board

(¢) Exercise of options

Under the 2007 Scheme, the options are exercisable in three equal tranches after one, two
and three years if specified price targets are met (or, if later, the date on which that target 1s
met)

Under the 2009 Scheme, 50 per cent of the options granted are normally exercisable at the
rate of 1/16 quarterly over a period of four years from the date of grant The remaining 50
per cent are exercisable only on a listng, sale or change ot control if the performance target
has been satisfied Special provisions apply if the optionholder dies or if the optionholder's
employment terminates by reason of permanent incapacity wrongful or constructive dismissal
or where the employment contract 1s terminated in circumstances where the optionholder s
not in breach of contract

In both the 2007 and 2009 Schemes, a change in control will normally result 1in options being
exercisable for a short time after which they will lapse Options will normally lapse on the
tenth anniversary of the date of grant

(d)y Performance measures

Under the 2007 Scheme, the opiions are exercisable if the Company’s average share price
over 20 days (as below) 1s as follows

Percentage of option

Share Price (pence) exercisable
38 333
43 333
b2 334

Under the 2009 Scheme, the performance condition 15 set by reterence to the Company's
share price at the date of a sale, hsting or change of control, as set out In the table below

Percentage of option

Share Price (pence) exercisable
6 ¢
16 25
26 50
36 75
46 100

If the share price 1s between the two pnces shown in the table, the percentage of the option
that 1s exercisable 1s calculated on a straight-ine basis

(e} Shares

Shares 1ssued on the exercise of an option will rank parn passu with existing Shares except
for any nghts attached to such Shares by reference to a record date pnor to the date of
allotment
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()  Vanation of share capital
Under the 2007 Scheme, on any vanation of the share capital by way of capitalisation or
nghts 1ssue or by consolidation, sub-division or reduction of capital or otherwise, the Board
may make such adjustments as it considers appropnate to the exercise price and/or the
number of Shares comprised i an option No such adjustment may be made without the
wntten confirmation from the Company's auditors that it 1s in their opinion farr and reasonable

Under the 2009 Scheme, on any vanation of the share capital by way of capitalisation or
nghts i1ssue or by conschdation, sub-division or reduction of capital or otherwise, the Board
may adjust the exercise pnce and/cr number of shares compnsed n an option so that the
total exercise price multiplied by the number of shares in relation to an opton remains the
same (as nearly as possible)

(9) Amendments to the Schemes
The Board may amend the Schemes at any time in any respect No amendment may be
made to alter to the maternal disadvantage of any option holder any nghts already acquired by
him (except In the case of the 2002 Scheme where such amendments may be made with
wniten consent from the optionholder)

21.3 The Trading Exchange pic long-term incentive plan 2004 and the Tradingsports Exchange
Systems plc “Everyman’’ long-term incentive plan 2004 (the “LTIiPs”’)

As at 22 June 2010, the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, there
were options outstanding over 1,773,000 shares under the LTIPs

(@) The LTIPs
The LTIPs are similar in every respect to which this summary relates

(b) Admurustration

The LTIPs are administered by the remuneration committee of the board of directors (the
“Committee”)

(c) Exercise of Awards
Options are already exercisable and the performance conditions have been satisfied

Options will lapse at the expiry of ten years from the date of grani

(d) Vanation of awards

The Commitiee may at any tme make such adjustments to any outstanding awards as 1t shall
deem appropnate in the event of any capitalisaton issues, nghts issue, subdivision,
consolidaticn or reduction or other vanation in the share capital of the Company

{e) Amendments o the LTIPs

The Board may amend the LTIPs at any time in any respect The rules of the LTIPs relating
to eligibiity, lmits on the number of Shares availlable under the LTIPs, the basis for
determiring an eligible employee’s participation, the maxmum entitlement of any participant,
terms for share transfer and to the adjusiment of awards on a vanation of capial and to the
amendment provisions may not, however, be amended to the advantage of existing or future
optionholders without the prior approval of the Company 1in general meeting except that the
Board may

() make any amendments necessary to comply with or take account of a change In
legislation and to obtain or maintain favourable taxation, exchange centrol or regulatory
treatment of the Company, any of its subsidianes or any optionholder, and

(1) make minor amendments to benefit the admimistration of the LTIPs

21.4 2005 Options

Individual options were granted over shares in EBT Mobile Limited on 1 June 2005 These were
exchanged for options over shares in the Company on 15 August 2005 The replacement options
were granted over Shares with a subscnpton price of £0 0197 per share As at 22 June 2010, the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, there were options outstanding
over 1,507,554 shares under the 2005 Options
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(a)

{c)

22,

Exercise of options

The opttons have both vested in full and may be exercised at any time untii the 10th
anniversary of thewr original grant date

Varation of options

if there 15 any alteration in the capital structure of the Company by way of capitalisation of
profits or reserves, nghts issue, consolhdation, sub-division or reduction of the share capital,
the Board may make such amendments to the options as #t deems appropriate and as the
auditers of the Company certify in wnting to be fair and reasonable

Amendment of options

The terms and condtons of the options may be altered by the Board except that no
alteration may adversely effect the terms of 1ssue of an option without the consent of the
optienhoider

Material contracts

22.1 Contracts entered into by members of the Group

The following contracts, not beng coniracts entered into In the ordinary course of business, have
been entered into by members of the Group in the penod beginming cn 24 June 2008 (being the
date two years pror to the dale of this document) and ending on the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of this document and are or may be matenal

(a)

(b)

Subscription Agreement

The Company and Ringlone have entered into a subscription agreement {the “Subscription
Agreement”) dated 20 August 2009 Pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Agreement,
the Company agreed to allot and 1ssue 66,611,111 EBT Shares to Ringtone at a subscription
price of £0 09 per EBT Share

The proceeds of the subscription of EBT Shares by Ringtone were utilised by the Company
to open new mobile phone/digital specialty retall stores branded by, or co-branded with,
“EBT", for strategic mergers and acquistions and as general working capial

Pursuant to the Subscnption Agreement, the Company undertook to implement an operational
restructuring of the Group and to use reasonable efforts to mate a redomestcation plan
within one year of approval of such plan by the Board The Company also undertook to adopt
new articles of association at its next general meeting

Sharehoiders’ Agreement

The Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into the
Shareholders’ Agreement dated 24 August 2009 The Shareholders’ Agreement I1s intended to
regulate the refationship between the Company and Ringtone, Audley, Tartan and CRV as
key shareholders in the Company

Under the Shareholders’ Agreement, each of Ringtone, Audiey, Tartan and CRV shall have
the nght, for so long as 1t holds at least 10 per cent of the 1ssued EBT Shares, to nominate
cne Director (and such Director shall also be a member of any committee of the Board)
Ringtone has nominated Mark Qw as its Director and CRV has nominated James Reiman as
its Director Audley and Tartan may only exercise their nights to appoint a Director upon the
termination of the directorship of Daniel Skaff or Stephen Dawidson by jointly selecting his
replacement The Managers shall have the night, for so long as they collectively hold at least
5 per cent of the 1ssued EBT Shares, to nominate one Director (and such Director shall also
be a member of any committee of the Board), which person shall be the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company The Managers have nominated Zhang Ge as ther Director

The parties to the Shareholders’ Agreement have undertaken to exercise all voting nghts and
powers of control available 1o them 1o procure that the Company shall not 1ake certam actions
without the prnior wniten consent of any four of Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the
Director appointed by the Managers (unless, in certain cases, the Director appointed by the
Managers has a conflict of inlerests, In which case the prior written consent of any three of
Ringtone, Audley, Tartan and CRV shall be required) Such reserved matters include
expanding, developing or evolving the business of the Company other than through the
Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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(c)

In addition, the parties to the Shareholders’ Agreement have undertaken to exercise all voting
nghts and powers of control available to them to procure that the Company shall not take
certain actions without the prior wntten consent of Ringtone and any three of Audley, Tartan,
CRV and the Director appointed by the Managers Such reserved matters include

(1} making any amendment to the memorandum or arlicles of association of any member of
the Group which would matenally alter the nghts of the EBT Shareholders or any subset
thereof,

(n) enterng into change of control transactions, ncluding any disposition of substantial
assets, business, undertaking, property, intellectual property nghts or other assets,
except In connection with a sale of goods or services In the ordinary course of business
of the Group or for a sale of all or a substantial part of the existing Shares in which the
aggregate value ot all Shares is valued at or more than US$250 million,

{m) - allowing any amalgamation, demerger, merger, corporate reconstruction or consoldation
of the Company however effected,

(v) taking any steps 1o wind up or dissolve the Company, including making a proposal for a
voluntary arrangement under section 1 of the Insolvency Act 1988,

{v) authonsing, creating or issuing any Shares, on a cumulatve basis, that will constitute
more than 20 per cent of the share capital ot the Company at the relevant time, and

{(v) implementing any specific plan for changing the place of incorporation of the holding
company of the Group from the United Kingdom to the Cayman Islands

The Company has also undertaken not to 1ssue any Shares to any person except in
accordance with certain pre-emption nghts set out in the Shareholders’ Agreement, pursuant
to which Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers shall have the rnght to subscrbe
to any such new Shares in preportion to ther existing shareholdings These pre-emptive
rights shall not apply to any Shares issued in connection with a business combinalbon,
including the Company's acguisition of another company by merger, consolidation, scheme of
arrangement or asset purchase or other re-organisation, provided that such transactions shall
have been approved in accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement

Termination Deed

The Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into a deed of
terminabon and release relating io the Shareholders’ Agreement dated 21 May 2010 (the
“Termination Deed”) Pursuant to the Termination Deed, the partes have agreed to
terminate the Shareholders’ Agreement and waive all nghts or claims against the other parties
under or In connection with the Shareholders’ Agreement, conditional upeon

() the Scheme becoming effective pursuant to its terms, and

() NewHoldCo, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers entenng into the New
Shareholders’ Agreement (further details of which are set out in paragraph 22 2 of this
Part)

22.2 Contracts entered into by NewHoldCo and BVICo

NewHo!dCo, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers have entered into a shareholders’
agreement dated 21 May 2010 (the “New Shareholders’ Agreement”}) The New Shareholders’
Agreement 1s intended to regulaie the relationship between NewHoldCo and Ringtone, Audley,
Tartan and CRV as key shareholders in NewHoldCo, and 1s expressed to take effect from the
Effective Date

The terms of the New Shareholders’ Agreement are matenally similar to those contained in the
Shareholders’ Agreement, as descrnibed in paragraph 22 1{b) above, with the following exceptions

(a)

(b)

(c)

references to “the Company” in paragraph 22 1(b) above should be construed as references
to NewHoldCo in the context of the New Shareholders’ Agreement,

references to “EBT Shares” in paragraph 22 1(b) above should be construed as references to
New Shares in the context of the New Shareholders’ Agreement,

references to “a Director” or “the Directors” in paragraph 22 1{b) above should be construed
as references to a NewHoldCo Directors or the NewHolkdCo Directors respechively,
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(d} the terms of the New Shareholders’ Agreement differ from those contaned In the
Shareholders’ Agreement whera required to reflect the difference in junsdiction and applicable
law between the Company and NewHoldCo, and

(e} where a panty loses the nght te nominate a Director as a result of 1ts holding of New Shares
falling below the specified percentage, the remaining parties (cther than NewHoldCo) may by

unanimous consent nominate an additional Director to replace the Director previously
nominated by that party

Other than as contained in this paragraph 22 2, none of NewHoldCo nor BVICo has entered into
any contracts, nol being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, in the perniod
beginning on the date of 1ts incorporation and ending on the latest practicable date pror to the
pubhcation of this document which are or may be matenal

23 Amendments to the EBT Articles

Part of the Special Resolution to be approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting relates
1o the approval of certain changes to the EBT Anicles The changes are set out in full in the notice
of General Meeting in Part 8 of this document

The proposed new Article 3A set out in paragraph 2 of the Special Resclution provides a
mechamsm to deal with existing nghts over EBT Shares Under the proposed new Article 3A, if the
Company 1ssues EBT Shares {other than to BVICo or its nomineei(s))

{a) between the approval of the Scheme at the Court Meeting and the Scheme Record Time,
they will be subject to the Scheme, and

(b) after the Scheme becomes effective, BVICo will automatically become entitled to acquire such
EBT Shares in consideration for procuring that NewHoldCo 1ssues or procures the transfer of
an equivalent number of New Shares

24. No material change

Save as disclosed In this document, there has been no known matenal change in the financial or
trading position of the Company since 31 December 2009, bemng the date to which the latest
published audited financial statements of the Company were drawn up

25 Matenal htigation

No member of the Group, NewHoldCo nor BVICo, 1s or has been engaged in any governmental,
legal or arbiiration proceedings, claims, disputes or investigations (including any such proceedings,
claims, disputes or investigations which are pending or threatened of which the Company 1s aware)
during the penod covenng at least the 12 months preceding the date of this document which may
have, or have had in the recent past, a significant effect on the Company or the Group’s financial
or trading position or profitability

26 Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following documenis will be avatable for mspection dunng normal business hours on
any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) up to and including the Effective
Date at the offices of Hogan Lovells International LLP at Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London
EC1A 2FG

(a) the memorandum and arlicles of association of the Company,
(b) the memorandum and articles of association of NewHoldCo,
(c) the memaorandum and articles of association of BVICo,

(d) the audited consolidated accounts of the Company for the three financial years ended
31 December 2009,

(e) copes of the undertakings referred to in paragraphs 6 and 9 above,

(  copies of the wniten consents referred to in paragraph 9 above,

(g) copies of the matenal contracts referred to in paragraph 22 above,

(h} this document and the Forms of Proxy, and

()} copies of the Scheme Document and any revised versions of the Scheme Document
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PART 5
THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE NO 4957 OF 2010
CHANCERY DIVISION

COMPANIES COURT

REGISTRAR NICHOLLS

(A)

IN THE MATTER OF EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
-and -
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

SCHEME OF ABRANGEMENT
{under Part 26 of the Companies Act 2006)
between
EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
and
THE HOLDERS OF THE SCHEME SHARES

{as hereinafter defined)

PRELIMINARY

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions bear
the following meanings

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday, publc holday or bank
hohday, on which banks are generally open for normal business in the City of London,

“BVICo” means EBT Digtal Communications Retal Limited, a business company
incorporated in the Bntish Virgin Islands with registered number 1571258, having its registered
office at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services (BVI) Limited, Walkers Chambers, 171 Main
Street, Road Town, Tortola, Brntish Virgin Islands,

“certificated form” or “in certificated form™ means a share or other secunty which 1s not in
uncertificated form (that 1s, not iIn CREST),

“Companies Law” means the Companies Law, CAP 22 of the Cayman lslands, as amended,

“Company” means EBT Mobile China PLC, a publc imited company incorporated in England
and Wales with regisiered number 4654471, having its registered office at Phoenix House,
18 King Wilham Street, London EC4N 7HE,

"Court” means the High Court of Justice in England and Wales,

“Court Meeting” means the meeting of the holders of EBT Shares convened with the
permission of the Court pursuant to section 896 of the Companes Act 2006 for 300 pm on
27 July 2010 to consider and, If thought fit, approve the Scheme, including any adjournment
thereot,

“CREST"' means the system for the paperless setilement of trades in secunties and the
holding of uncertificated securities operated by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited n accordance
with the Regulations,

“EBT Shares” or “Shares” means ordinary shares of 01 pence each in the capital of the
Company,

“Effective Date” means the date on which this Scheme becomes effective in accordance with
its terms,

“holder” means a registered holder and includes any person(s) entitled by transmission,
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{B8)

\®)

(D}

“New BV Share’’ means one share of US$1 00 in the capital of BVICe to be allotted and
1ssued to NewHoldCo 1n accordance with the Scheme,

“New Company Shares” means new ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each in the capital of the
Company to be aflotted and 1ssued te BVICo in accordance with the Scheme,

“NewHoldCo” means EBT Digital Communications Retaill Group, an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with registered number WK-237161, having its registered
office at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary Sireet,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands,

“New Shares” means new shares of 01 pence each in the capital of NewHoldCo to be
allotted and i1ssued 1n accordance with the Scheme,

“Order” means the order of the Court sanctoning the Scheme and confirming the reduction
of capital involved in the Schemes,

“Order Date” means the date on which the Order is made or, If later, the date on which the
Order 15 expressed to take effect,

“Regulations” means the Uncertificated Securties Regulations 2001 (SI 2001/3785), as
amended from time to time,

“Relevant Holders” means holders of Shares whose names appear in the register of
members of the Company at the Scheme Record Time,

“Scheme” means this scheme of arrangement in its present form or with or subject to any
moedification, addition or condition approved or imposed by the Coun,

“Scheme Record Time” means 6 00 pm (London tme) on the Business Day immediately
preceding the Order Date,

"Scheme Shares” means
(a) all EBT Shares m i1ssue at the date of this document,

{b} all (if any) additional EBT Shares i1ssued after the date of this document but up to the
Voting Record Time, and

(c) all (f any) further EBT Shares which may be issued at or after the Scheme Record
Time but at or prior to 6 00 pm on the Business Day immediately preceding the Order
Date in respect of which the onginal or any subsequent holder thereot shall be bound by
the Scheme or shall by such ime have agreed in wnting to be bound by the Scheme,

save for any Shares registered i the name of (or beneficially held by) NewHoldCo,

“uncertificated form” or “in uncertificated form” means a share or other security recorded
on the relevant register as being held in uncertificated form in CREST, and ttle to which, by
virtue of the Regulations, may be fransferred by means of CREST, and

“VYoting Record Time” means 6 00 pm on the date which 15 two Business Days before the
date of the Court Meeting or, if the Court Meeting 1s adjourned, 6 00 pm on the second
Business Day beiore the date of such adjourned meeting

The Company’'s articles of association himit the maximum amount of shares # may 1ssue to, In
aggregate, £400,000 divided into 400,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each At the date
this statement ts made, the Company has an issued share captal of, in aggregate,
£269,756 34 with 269,756,335 ordinary shares of 01 pence each having been issued and
allotted fully paid

NewHoldCc was incorporated in the Cayman lslands on 12 February 2010 under the
Companes Law as an exempted company with the name EBT Digital Comrmunicaticns Retait
Group

Pursuant to NewHoldCo’s memorandum of association, 1ts current authorised share capital 18
£400,000 divided into 400,000,000 shares of 01 pence each The authonsed share capital
can be increased by a special resolution of its shareholders At the date this statement 1s
made, NewHoldCo has an issued share capital of, in aggregate, £10 00 with 10,000 shares of
0 1 pence having been 1ssued and allotted fully pad

BVICo was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 12 February 2010 under the BVI
Business Companies Act 2004 (as amended) of the Bntish Virgin Islands as a business
company with the name EBT Digital Communications Retail Limited
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BVICo’s memorandum of association imits the maximum amount of shares it may issue to, in
aggregate, US$50,000 dwvided into 50,000 shares of US$100 each At the date this
statement 1s made, BVICo has an issued share capital of, In aggregate, US$1 00 with one
share of US$1 00 having been 1ssued and allotted fully paid

NewHoldCo and BViCo have agreed to appear by Counse! on the hearnng of the clam form
to sanction this Scheme and to undertake to the Court to be bound by the provisions of this
Scheme and to execute and do or procure to be executed and dene all such documents, acts
and things as may be necessary or desirable to be executed or done by it for the purpose of
giving effect to this Scheme

Cancellation of Scheme Shares

The 1ssued share capital of the Company shall be reduced by canceling and extinguishing
the Scheme Shares

The Company shall be re-registered as a private mited company In accordance with the
Order of the Court authonsing such re-registration under section 651 of the Companies Act
2006

Forthwith and contingently upon the reduction of capital referred to in clause 1 1 taking effect,
the Company shall apply and capitalise the reserve ansing as a result of the reduction of
capital pursuant to clause 11 1n paying up in full at par such number of New Company
Shares as shall be equal to the number of Scheme Shares cancelled pursuant o clause 11
of this Scheme, which shall be allotted and issued credited as fully paid up (free from all
lens, charges, encumbrances, equitable nterests, nghts of pre-emption and any other
interests of any nature whatsoever) to BVICo and/or its nominee

Consideration for the Cancellation of the Scheme Shares

Subject to and In consideration for the cancellation of the Scheme Shares pursuant to clause
11 and the allotment and i1ssue of the New Ordinary Shares to BVICo as provided In clause
13, BVICo shall (subject to, and in accordance with, the remaining terms of this Scheme)
allot and i1ssue the New BVI Share credited as fully paid to NewHoldCo and/or its nominee

Subject to and in consideration for the 1ssue of the New BV Share to NewHoldCo and/or its
nominee referred to in clause 2 1, NewHoldCo shall (subject to, and 1n accordance with, the
remamning terms of this Scheme} allot and 1ssue New Shares credited as fully pad to
Relevant Holders on the basis of one New Share for each Scheme Share held at the
Scheme Record Time

Allotment and 1ssue of the New BVI Share and New Shares

The New BVI Share to be issued pursuant to clause 21 shall rank pan passu with aill other
shares in the capital of BVICo in 1ssue on the Effectve Date, wil be issued free from all
hens, charges, encumbrances, equitable interests, nghts of pre-emption and any other
interests of any nature whatsoever, and shall rank i full for all dwvidends or other distnbutions
made, paid or declared after the Effective Date on the ordinary share capital of BVICo in
accordance with BVICo's bye-laws

The New Shares to be 1ssued pursuant to clause 2 2 shall rank parr passu with all other New
Shares in 1ssue on the Effective Date, will be 1ssued free from all liens, charges,
encumbrances, equitable interests, rnghts of pre-emption and any other interests of any nature
whatsoever, and shall rank in full for all dwvidends or distnbutions made, paid or declared after
the Effectve Date on the ordinary share capital of NewHoldCo in accordance with
NewHoldCo's bye-laws

Immediately after thus Scheme becomes effective

(@) BVICo shall make all such allotment of and shall 1ssue such New BVI Share as 1s
required to be I1ssued to give effect to this Scheme to NewHoldCo, and

{b} NewHoldCo shall make all such allotments of and shall 1ssue such New Shares as are
required to be issued to give effect to this Scheme to persons respectively entitled
thereto,

such consideration to be settled as set out In clause 34, but subject to clause 35
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Settlement of the consideraton shall be effected as follows

(a) the New BVI Share shall be issued to NewHoldCo in certificated form and a share
certificate for those shares shall be 1ssued to NewHoldCo by the fourteenth day following
the Effective Date, and

{b} in respect of a holding of Scheme Shares
() n uncertificated form, or
(m in certiicated form,

the New Shares to which the Relevant Holder 1s entitled will be 1ssued in registered
form Each holding of New Shares will be entered into the register of members of
NewHoldCo, which will constitute evidence of ownership of such shares pursuant to the
Companies Law Share certificates in respect of the New Shares will only be 1ssued by
NewHoldCo following written request by the relevant holder of such shares

The provisions of this clause 3 shall be subject to any prohibstiont or condition imposed by
law Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, if, in respect of any holder of
Scheme Shares with a registered address in a junsdichon outside the United Kingdom or the
Cayman Islands, NewHoldCo s adwised that the allotment andfor 1ssue of New Shares
pursuant to this clause 3 would infringe the laws of such jurnsdiction or would or may require
NewHoldCo to observe any governmental or other consent or any registration, fiing or other
formahty, with which NewHcldCo 1s unable to comply or which NewHoldCo regards as unduly
onerous to comply with, NewHoldCo may, in its sole discretion, either

(a) determine that New Shares shall not be allotted and 1ssued to such holder under this
clause 3 but shall instead be allotted and 1ssued to a nominee appointed by NewHoldCo
as trustee for such holder on terms that the nominee shall, as soon as prachcable
following the Effective Date, sell the New Shares so allotted and issued at the best price
which can reasonably be obtained and account for the net proceeds of such sale {(after
the deducton of all expenses and commssions, including any amounts in respect of
value added tax payable thereon) by sending a cheque to such holder In the absence
of bad faith or wilful default, none of the Company, NewHoldCo or the nominee or any
broker or agent of any of them shall have any liability for any loss or damage arnsing as
a result of the timing or terms of such sale, or

(b) determine that New Shares shall be sold, in which event the New Shares shall be
issued to such holder and NewHoldCo shall appoint a person to act pursuant to this
clause 3 5(b} and such person shall be authonsed on behalf of such holder to procure
that any shares in respect of which NewHoldCo has made such determination shall as
soon as practicable following the Effective Date be sold at the best pnce which can
reasonably be obtained at the time of sale and the net proceeds of such sale (after the
deduction of all expenses and commissions, including any amounts 1in respect of value
added tax payable therecn) shall be pad to such holder by sending a cheque to such
holder To give effect any to such sale, the person so appointed shall be authorised on
behali of such holder to execute and deliver a form of transier and to give such
instructtons and to do all other things which he may consider necessary or expedient 1n
connection with such sale In the absence of bad fath or wiliul default, none of the
Company, NewHoldCo or the perscn so appointed or any broker or agent of any of
them shall have any habilty for any loss or damage ansing as a result of the timing or
terms of such sale, and

{¢} mn the case of Scheme Shares in certificated form at the Scheme Record Time,
NewHoldCo shall on behalf of the nominee or person appointed pursuant to clause
3 5(a) make any cash payment pursuant to clause 3 5(a) by delivenng to the persons
respectively entitied thereto, or as they may direct, cheques in sterhng drawn on a UK
clearing bank by post by the fourteenth day following the Effective Date

All delivenes of notices, documents of title and cheques required to be made by this clause
shall be effected by posting the same by first class post in pre paid envelopes addressed to
the persons respectively entiled thereto at therr respective addresses as appeanng in the
register of members (or, In the case of Jjoint holders, to the address of that one of the joint
holders whose name stands first in the sad register of members in respect of the jomnt
holding) at the Scheme Record Time
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Neither the Company nor NewHoldCo shall be responsible for any loss or delay in the
transmission of the documents of ttle posted in accordance with clause 3 6 which shall be
posted at the nsk of the addressee

Transfers of the New Shares issued to Relevant Holders pursuant to this Scheme shall be
certified against the register of members of NewHoldCo

Certificates

With eftect from and including the Effective Date, all certificates representing Scheme Shares
shall cease to be valid for any purpose and Relevant Holders shall at the request of the
Company return such certsficates for cancellation to the Company or to any person appointed
by the Company

With effect from and including the Effective Date, in respect of those Relevant Holders
holding Scheme Shares in uncertficated form, Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited shall be
instructed to cancel such holders’ entittement to such Scheme Shares

Mandated payments

Each mandate relating to the payment of dividends on any Scheme Shares and other
instructions given to the Company by Relevant Holders in force at the Scheme Record Time
shall, unless and until amended or revoked, be deemed as from the Effective Date to be an
effective mandate or instruction to NewHoldCo in respect of the corresponding New Shares to
be allotted and 1ssued pursuant to this Scheme

Operation of this Scheme

This Scheme shall become effective In accordance with its terms as soon as an office copy
of the Order of the Court sanctioning the Scheme under section 899 of the Compames Act
2006 and confirming under section 648 of that Act the reduchion of capital provided for by this
Scheme shall have been duly delivered to the Registrar of Compantes in England and Wales
tor registration and, in the case of the capital reduction, If the Order of the Court confirming it
so specifies, registered by him

Unless this Scheme shall become effective on or before 30 September 2010 or such later
date, if any, as the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo may agree and the Court may allow,
this Scheme shall never become effective

The Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo may jointly consent on behalf of all persons concerned
to any modification of or addition to this Scheme or to any condition which the Court may
approve or impose

Dated 24 June 2010
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PART 6
DEFINITIONS

“AIM” means the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange,

“Audley” means Audley Capital Management Limited, a company mited by shares incorporated tn
Guernsey with registered number 43347, having its registered office at Trafalgar Count, Les
Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey, acting as investment manager for

(a) Audley European Opportunities Master Fund Limited, a company hmited by shares
incorporated in Guernsey with registered number 43411, having its registered office at
Trafalgar Court, Les Bangues, St Peler Porl, Guernsey,

{b) Audley Investment |, a company hmited by shares incorporated In the Cayman tslands with
registered number 154492, having its registered office at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1 — 1104, Cayman Islands, and

(c) Audley Investment |l, a company limited by shares incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
registered number 156439, having its registered office at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1 — 1104, Cayman lIslands,

“Board” means the board of directors of the Company,

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday, public holiday or bank holiday, on
which banks are generally open for normal business in the City of London,

“BVICo” means EBT Digtal Communications Retal Limited, a business company incorporated in
the Briish Virgin Islands with registered number 1571258, having its registered office at the offices
of Walkers Corporate Services (BVI) Limited, Walkers Chambers, 171 Man Street, Road Town,
Tortola, Botish Virgin Islands,

“Capita Registrars” means a trading name of Capita Registrars Limited,

“Chairman” means the chairman of the Board,

“Companies Act’” means the Companies Act 2006, as amended,

“Companies Law” means the Compames Law, CAP 22 of the Cayman Islands, as amended,

“Company” means EBT Mobile China PLC, a public mited company incorporated in England and
Wales with registered number 4654471, having its registered office at Phoenix House, 18 King
Willam Street, London EC4N 7HE,

“Court” means the High Count of Justice in England and Wales,

"Court Hearing” means the hearing by the Court of the claim to sanction the Scheme and confirm
the reducton of capital involved in the Scheme,

“Court Meeting” means the meeting of the holders of EBT Shares convened with the permission
of the Court pursuant to section 896 of the Companies Act for 300 pm on 27 July 2010 to
consider and, If thought fi, approve the Scheme, including any adjournment thereof, nolice of
which 15 set out in Part 7 of this document,

"CREST” means the system for the paperless setttement of tfrades in secuntes and the holding of
uncertificated securities operated by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited in accordance with the
Regulations,

“"CRV” means Chma Retall Venture #1, Inc, a corporation incorporated in the state of Delaware,
United States with registered number 90-0118835, having its registered office at Corporate Trust
Centre, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Newcastle, Delaware 19801, United States,

“Directors” means the persons whose names are set out in paragraph 4 of Part 4 of this
document or, where the context so requires, the directors of the Company from time to tme, and
“Director” shall be construed accordingly,

“EBT Articles” means the articles of association of the Company,

“EBT Shareholders” or “Shareholders” means the holders of EBT Shares from time to time, and
“EBT Shareholder” and "Shareholder” shall be construed accordingly,

“EBT Shares” or “Shares” means ordinary shares of 01 pence each in the capital of the
Company,
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“Effective Date” means the date on which the Scheme becomes effective in accordance with its
terms,

“Forms of Proxy” means both the white form of proxy for use at the Court Meeting and the blue
form of proxy for use at the General Meeting which accompany this document, and “Form of
Proxy” shall be construed accordingly,

“General Meeting” means the general meeting of the Company convened by the notice set out In
Part 8 of this document, including any adjournment thereof,

“Group” means, before the Effective Date, the Company and its subsidiaries and subsidiary
undentakings, and, following the Effective Date, NewHoldCo and its subsidianes and subsidiary
undertakings,

“Key Shareholders” means the parlies, other than NewHoldCo, to the New Shareholders’
Agreement,

“Managers” means certain members of the Company’'s management who are parties 1o the
Shareholders’ Agreement,

“Meetings” means the Court Meeting and the General Meeting, and “Meeting” shall be construed
accordingly,

“New BVI Share” means one share of US$1 00 in the capital of BVICo to be allotted and 1ssued
1o NewHoldCo in accordance with the Scheme,

“New Company Shares” means new ordinary shares of 01 pence each in the capital of the
Company to be allotted and i1ssued to BVICo in accordance with the Scheme,

“NewHoldCo” means EBT Digtal Communicatons Retal Group, an exempted company
incorporated n the Cayman Islands with registered number WK-237161, having its registered office
at the offices of Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands,

“NewHoldCo Articles” means the articles of association of NewHoldCo,
“NewHoldCo Board” means the board of directers of NewHoldCo,

“NewHoldCo Directosy” means the directors of NewHoldCo from time to time, and “NewHoldCo
Director” shall be construed accordingly,

“New Shareholders” means the holders of New Shares,

“New Shareholders’ Agreement” means a shareholders’ agreement dated 21 May 2010 between
NewHoldCo, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers,

“New Shares” means new shares of 01 pence each in the capital of NewHoldCo to be allotted
and 1ssued in accerdance with the Scheme,

“Order” means the order of the Court sanchoning the Scheme and confirming the reduction of
capital involved in the Scheme,

“Order Date" means the date on which the Order is made or, If later, the date on which the Order
1s expressed to take effect,

“Overseas Shareholders” means EBT Shareholders who are resident in, or ciizens or nationals
of, junsdictions outside the United Kingdom, and “Overseas Shareholder” shall be construed
accordingly,

“Regulations” means the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 (SI 2001/3755), as amended
from time to time,

“Relevant Holders” means holders of Shares whose names appear In the register of members of
the Company at the Scheme Record Time,

“"Re-organisation” means the corporate re-organisaton and winding up of the Company which s
proposed to take place as soon as practicable after the Effective Date, as described in more detail
in paragraph 2 of Part 1 of this document,

“Ringtone” means Ringtone Investment Limited a company imited by shares incorporated in the
Bnhsh Virgin Islands wiath reqistered number 1540988, having s registered office at Kingston
Chambers, PO Box 173, Road Town, Torfola, British Virgin Islands,

“Ringtone Shares” means 10,000 shares i the capital of NewHoldCo,
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“Scheme” or “Scheme of Arrangement” means the scheme of arrangement in its present form,
as set out in Part 5 of this document, or with or subject to any modification, addition or condition
approved or imposed by the Court,

“Scheme Document’” means this circular dated 24 June 2010 addressed to Shareholders
containing, among other things, the terms and conditions of the Scheme, certain information about
the Company, NewHoldCo and BVICo, the notices convening the Meetings and an Explanatory
Statement in comphance with section 897 of the Companies Act,

"Scheme Record Time” means 600 pm (London tme) on the Business Day immediately
preceding the Order Date,

“Scheme Shareholders” means the holders of Scheme Shares, and “Scheme Shareholder” shall
be construed accordingly,

“Scheme Shares” means
(a) all EBT Shares in 1ssue at the date of this document,

(b) all (if any) additional EBT Shares 1ssued after the date of this document but up 1o the Voting
Record Time, and

(c) all {f any) further EBT Shares which may be 1ssued at or after the Scheme Record Time but
at or prior to 6 00 p m on the Business Day immediately preceding the Order Date in respect
of which the onginal or any subsequent holders thereof shall be bound by the Scheme or
shall have agreed in wnting to be bound by the Scheme,

save for any Shares registered in the name of (or beneficially held by) NewHoldCo,
“SEC” means the US Secunties and Exchange Commussion,
“Secunties Act” means the US Secuntes Act of 1933, as amended,

“Shareholders’ Agreement” means a shareholders’ agreement dated 24 August 2008 between
the Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the Managers,

“Share Schemes” means
{a) the Trading Exchange plc long-term incentive plan 2004,
{b) the Tradingsporis Exchange Systems plc “Everyman” fong-term incentive plan 2004,

(c) the options granted on 1 June 2005 over shares in EBT Mobile Limited and exchanged for
options over shares in the Company on 15 August 2005,

(d} the EBT Mobile Chuna plc share option scheme 2007, and
(e} the EBT Mcbile China plc Share Option Scheme 2009

“Special Resolution” means the special resolution to be proposed at the General Meeting in
connection with, inter afha, the imptementation of the Scheme,

“Subscrniber Share” means cne new share in the capital of NewHoldCo, which was issued on
incorporation of NewHoldCo to Walkers Nominees Limited and subsequently transferred to
Ringtone,

“Subscription Agreement” means a subscription agreement dated 20 August 2009 between the
Company and Ringtone,

“Tartan” means Tartan Investment Partners Fund GP Limited, a company hmited by shares
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with reqistered number WK-224125, having iis registered office
at 1st Floor, Windward 1, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 10338, Grand Cayman KY1-1003, Cayman
Islands, acting as investment manager for Tartan Investment Partners, L P, a mited partnership
incorporated n the Cayman lIslands with registered number WK-32466 having iis registered office
at 1st Floor, Windward 1, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 10338, Grand Cayman KY1-1003, Cayman
Islands,

“Termination Deed” means a deed of termination and release relating to the Shareholders’
Agreement dated 21 May 2010 between the Company, Ringtone, Audley, Tartan, CRV and the
Managers,

"United Kingdom” means the United Kingdom of Great Bntain and Northern Ireland,
“United States” or “US” means the United States of America, s terrtones and possessions and
any state of the United States,
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*“USS"” or “US dollars” means Unded States dollars, or the lawfu! currency of the Uniled States
from time to time,

“Yoting Record Time” means 6 00 pm on the day which is two Business Days before the date
of the Court Meeting or, if the Court Meeting 1s adjourned, 600 p m on the second Business Day
before the date of such adjourned meeting, and

“£” means pounds Sterling, or the lawful currency of the United Kingdom from time to time
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PART 7

NOTICE OF COURT MEETING

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE 4957 of 2010
CHANCERY DIVISION
COMPANIES COURT

IN THE MATTER OF EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC
- AND -
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

Notice 1s hereby given that, by an order dated 18 June 2010 made in the above matters, the Court
has directed a meeting to be convened of holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the Scheme of
Arrangement referred to below) save for EBT Digrtal Communications Retall Group for the purpose
of constdermg and, If thought fit, approving (with or without modification) a scheme of arrangement
proposed to be made between EBT Mobile China PLC {the "Company”) and holders of the
Scheme Shares (the “Scheme of Arrangement”) and that such meeting will be held at the offices
of Hogan Lovells International LLP at Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG on
27 July 2010 at 300 pm at which place and time all helders of Scheme Shares are requested to
attend

A copy of the said Scheme of Arrangement and a copy of the statement required to be furmished
pursuant to section 897 of the Companies Act 2006 are incorporated tn the document of which this
notice forms part

Holders of Scheme Shares may vote in person at the meeting or they may appoint another
person as their proxy to attend and vote In their stead A proxy need not be a member of
the Company A white form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed with this notice

In the case of joint holders of Scheme Shares the vote of the semior who tenders a vote, whether
in person or by proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holder(s}
and for this purpose senierity will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members of the Company in respect of the relevant jont holding

It 1s requested that forms appointing proxies be lodged with Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU not less than 48 hours (excluding non-working days) before the
start of the meeting but, If forms are not so lodged, they may be handed to the charman at the
meehng

Entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting and the number of votes which may be case thereat
will be determined by reference to the register of members of the Company at 6 00 pm on the
Business Day pnor to the Business Day immediately before the meeting or any adjourned meeting
(as the case may be)

By the said order, the Court has appointed Stephen Davidscn, or failing him, Damel Skaff to act as
charrman of the meeting and had directed the chairman to report the result of the meeting to the
Court

The said Scheme of Arrangement will be subject 1o the subsequent sanction of the Court
Dated 24 June 2010
Hogan Lovells International LLP

Atlantic House
Holborn Viaduct
London EC1A 2FG

Solicitors for the Company

Notes

1 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting s entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak
and vote and, on a poll, vote instead of lim or her If you wish for your proxy or proxies to make any comments on your behalf,
you will need to appoint someone other than the Chairman and give them the relevant instructions diectly A proxy need not be
a member of the Company
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Members are entitled to appoint a proxy in respect of some or all of their shares A space has been included in the white form of
proxy to allow members to speaify the number of shares in respect of which that proxy 1s appointed Members who return the
white form of proxy duly executed but feave this space blank will be deemed to have appomnted the proxy in respect of all of
thew shares You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is gppomnted to exercise nghts attached to different
shares You may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise nghts attached to any one share To appoint more than one
proxy, please photocopy the white form of proxy Please indicate the proxy holder's name and the number cf shares in refation
to which they are authonsed to act as proxy (which, In aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares held by the
member} Please also indicate if the proxy instruction 1s one of multiple instructions being given Al forms must be signed and
should be retumed together in the same envelope

A white form of proxy i1s enclosed with this notice  Instructions for use are shown on the form Lodging a white form of proxy will
not prevent the member from attending and voting in person

To be valid, the white form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or cther authonty (f any) under which it 1s signed, or a
duly certried copy thereof, must be deposited by post or (dunng normal business hours only) by hand with the Company’s
registrars, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours betore the ime
for holding the meeting or, as the case may be, the adjoumed meeting Foms of proxy retumed by fax will not be accepted If
the white form of proxy 15 not so lodged, it may be handed to the Chairman of the Count Meeting before the start of the Court
Meeting and will still be valid

The Company, pursuant to regulation 41(1) of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 (S | 2001/3755), specifies that
only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company at 6 00 p m on 23 July 2010 shall be entitled to
attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registered intheir name at that ime  Changes to entnes on the
register after 6 00 p m on 23 July 2010 wili be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vote at the
meeting

In the case of joint holders of ordinary shares the vote of the semor shareholder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint helder{s) and for this purpose senionty will be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the reqister of members of the Company 1n respect of the refevant jomnt holding

Shareholders who hold shares through CREST and who wish to appont a proxy or proxies for the meeting or any
adjournment{s) by using the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do $0 by using the procedures descnbed in the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropnate action on therr behalf

In order for a proxy appontment or Instruction made using the CREST service o be vald, the apprepnate CREST message (a
“CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenhcated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Ltd's specifications
and must contain the mformation required for such instructions, as described mthe CREST Manual The message, regardless
of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy,
must, in order to be valid, be transmitted $0 as to be recewved by the Company's agent, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU (ID RA10), by no later than the latest time for receipt of proxy appointmenis specitied in the
notice of meeting For this purpose, the tme of receipt will be taken to be the ime {as determined by the timestamp applied to
the message by the CREST apphcations Host) from which the 1ssuer's agent 1s able to retnieve the message by enquiry to
CREST in the manner prescnbed by CREST After this time any change of nstructions o proxies appomted through CREST
should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting serice prowviders, should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Ltd does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system tmings and
limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take (or, if the CREST member ts a CREST sponsor or voling service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message I1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular ime  In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those
sechons of the CREST Manual concerring practical imitabions of the CREST systemn and trmings

The Company may treat as invahd a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out In Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertiicated Securities Regulation 2001
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PART 8
NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

EBT MOBILE CHINA PLC

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that a general meeting of EBT Mobile China PLC (the “Company”) will be
held at the offices of Hogan Lovells International LLP at Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London
EC1A 2FG on 27 July 2010 at 330 pm (or as soon thereafter as the mesting of the holders of
Scheme Shares (as defined in the scheme of arrangement dated 24 Jfune 2010 (the "Scheme")
between the Company and the holders of Scheme Shares (as defined In the Scheme), a pnint of
which has been produced to this meeting and for the purposes of identification has been signed by
the chairman of this meeting) convened for 300 pm on the same day and at the same place, by
an order of the High Court of Justice, shall have concluded or been adjourned) for the purpose of
considering and, Iif thought fit, passing the following resolution which will be proposed as a special
resolution

Special Resolution
THAT

1 for the purpose of giving effect to the Scheme in its onginal form or with or subject to any
modification, addition or conditton approved or imposed by the Court,

(a) the directors of the Company be authonsed to take all such action as they may consider
necessary or appropriate for carrying the Scheme into effect,

(b} the share capita! of the Company be reduced by cancelling all the Scheme Shares,

(c) forthwith and contngently on such reducton of capital taking effect, the reserve ansing
in the books of account of the Company as a result of the cancellation of the Scheme
Shares be applied in paying up in full at par such number of new ordinary shares of 01
pence each as shall be equal to the number of Scheme Shares cancelled at sub-
paragraph (b} above, such new crdinary shares to be allotted and i1ssued credited as
fully paid to EBT Digital Communications Retail Limited and/or s nominee(s}, and

(dy the directors of the Company be hereby authorised pursuant to and in accordance with
section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”} to give effect to this resolution and
accordingly to effect the allotment of the new ordinary shares referred to In sub-
paragraph (c) above, provided that

{y s authority shall expire on 27 July 2015,

() the maximum aggregate nominal amount of shares whch may be allotted
hereunder shall be £269,756 34, and

(m} this authonty shall be without prejudice 1o any other authonty under section 551 of
the Act previously granmted before the date on which this resolution 1s passed,

2 conditionatl on the Scheme becoming effective, the articles of association of the Company be
and are hereby amended by the adopton and inclusion of the following new article 3A

"3A. Shares not subject to Scheme of Arrangement

{1} In this article, relerences to the “Scheme” are to the Scheme of Arrangement
between the Company and the holders of Scheme Shares (as defined in the
Scheme) dated 24 June 2010 (as the same may have been modified with the
consent of the Company, NewHoldCo, BVICo and the Court) under section 899 of
the Companies Act 2006 and terms defined in the Scheme shall have the same
meanings n this article

(2) Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Artcles, if the Company 1ssues any
Shares (olher than to NewHoldCo or any subsidiary of NewHoldCo (a
“NewHoldCo Group Company”’)) on cr after the date of the adoption of this
article and prior to 6 00 pm on the Business Day immediately pnor to the date of
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the hearng to sanction the Scheme {the "Hearing Date”) such Shares shail be
1ssued subject to the terms of the Scheme and the holder or holders of such
Shares shall be bound by the Scheme accordingly

(3) If any Shares are 1ssued to any person (a “new member”) at or after 6 00 pm on
the day before the Heanng Date they will, provided that the Scheme has become
effective and that BVICo 1s a member of the Company, be immediately transferred
to BVICo (unless such shares are i1ssued to a NewHoldCo Group Company) in
consideration of and conditicnal on the 1ssue to the new member of such number
of New Shares as that member would have been enttled to had each Share
transferred to BVICo hereunder been a Scheme Share at the Scheme Record
Time, being shares in NewHceldCo which rank parr passu with all other shares n
NewHoldCo for the time being in 1ssue including any dividends or distributions
made, paid or declared thereon following the date on which the transfer of the
shares in the Company I1s executed

(4) The number of shares in NewHoldCo to be issued to the new member under this
article may be adjusted by the directors in such manner as the Company’s auditor
may determine on any re-organisation of the share capital of the Company or of
NewHoldCo

(5) To gwe effect to any such transfer required by this article, the Company may
appoint any person to execute a form of transfer on behalf of the new member In
favour of BVICo and to agree for and on behalf of the new member to become a
member of NewHoldCo Pending the registration of BVICo as the holder of any
share to be transferred pursuant to thus aricle, BVICo shall be empowered to
appoint a person nominated by the directors to act as attorney on behalf of each
holder of the share in accordance with such directions as BVICo may give in
relation to any dealings with or disposal of such share (or any interest theren},
exercising any nghts attached thereto or receiving any distribution or other benefit
accruing or payable In respect thereof and the registered holder of such share shall
exercise all nghts attaching thereto in accordance with the directions ot BVICo but
not otherwise ™

24 June 2010

By order of the Board

Capita Company Secretanal Services Limited
Secretary

Registered office
Phoerix House

18 King Wilham Street
Londcn ECAN 7HE

Registered in England and Wales no 4654471

Notes

1

A member of the Company entitled to atiend and vote at this meeting is entilled to appoint one or more proxtes 1o attend, speak
and vote and, on a poll, vote instead of him or her If you wish for your proxy or proxies to make any comments on your behalf,
you will need to appoint someone other than the Chairman and give them the relevant instructions directly A proxy need not be
a member of the Company

Members are entitted to appont a proxy in respect of some or all of thewr shares A space has been included in the blue form of
proxy to allow members to specify the number of shares in respect of which that proxy 1s appointed Members who return the
blue form of proxy duly executed but leave this space blank will be deemed to have appointed the proxy in respect of all of thewr
shares You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy 1s apponted to exercise nghts attached to different shares
You may nct appeint more than one proxy to exercise nghts attached to any one share To appoint mere than one proxy,
please photocopy the blue form of proxy Please indicate the proxy holders name and the number of shares in relation to which
they are authonsed to act as proxy (which, m aggregate, should not exceed the number of shares held by the member) Please
also indicate if the proxy mnstructon is one of muttiple instructions being given Afl forms must be signed and should be returned
together in the same envelope

A blue torm of proxy 13 enclosed with this notice Instructions for use are shown on the form todging a blue form of proxy will
not prevent the member from attending and voting in person
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To be valid, the blue torm of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authonty (if any) under which it 1s signed, or a
duly certihied copy thereof, must be deposited by post or (dunng normal business hours only) by hand with the Company’s
registrars, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours before the time
for holding the meeting or, as the case may be, the adjourned meeting Forms of proxy returned by fax will not be accepted
The Company, pursuant to regulation 41(1) of the Uncertficated Secunties Regulations 2001 (S 1 2001/3755), specifies that
only those shareholders registered in the reqgister of members of the Company at 6 00 p m on 23 July 2010 shall be entitled to
attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in thewr name at thatuime Changes to entnes on the
register after 6 00 pm on 23 July 2010 will be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vote at the
meeting

In the case of jomnt holders of ordinary shares the vote of the senior shareholder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint holder{s) and for this purpose sermonty will be determmed by the order
in which the names stand in the register of members of the Company In respect of the relevant joint holding

Sharetiolders who hold shares through CREST and who wish to appoint a proxy or proxes for the meeting or any
adjournment(s) by using the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures described in the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to thewr CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropnate action on their behalf

In order for a proxy appointment or instruchion macde using the CREST service 10 be vaid, the appropnate CREST message (a
“"CREST Proxy Instructlon™) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & lreland Ltd's specifications
and must contamn the informaton required for such Instructions, as descnbed in the CREST Manual The message, regardless
of whether i constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy,
must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s agent, Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU {ID RA10), by no later than the latest time for receipt of proxy appontments specified In the
notice of meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determmed by the timestamp applied to
the message by the CREST applicatons Host) from which the 1ssuer's agent s able to retneve the message by enquiry to
CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this time any change of instructions to proxies appomnted through CREST
should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers, should note that Euroclear UK &
ireland Lid does not make avallable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timuings and
imitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It ts the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take {or, If the CREST member s a CREST sponsar or voting service provider(s) take{s)) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any partcular ime  In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, ther CREST sponsors or voling service providers are referred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical hmitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a} of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulation 2001
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ANNEX 1
CURRENT GROUP STRUCTURE

Shareholders

The Company

EBT Mobile Limited
{incorporated in
Hong Kong)

EBT International Trade
(Shanghai) Co Ltd
{incorporated in China)

1AtoZ Beying Co,
(incorporated in China)*

Hubei Yiteng
Telecommunications
Products Co, t.td
{Incorporated in China)

Shangha YBT Service
Cansulting Co, Ltd
(incorporated in Chtna)

Shanghal Everbright Suzhou Yiteng
Communicaticn Terrminal Telecommunications
Products Distnbution Ltd Products Co, Ltd

(incorporated n China) (incorporated in China)
Suzhou Everbnght Shanghai EBT
Communication Terminal Telecommunications

Products Distnbution Ltd Products Co, Ltd
(incorporated in China) (incorporated in China)

*‘Note EBT Mobile Limited does not directly own the 1ssued share capital of itoZ Beying Co, Ltd EBT Mobile Limited 15 able to
exercise control through exclusive purchase nghis and accrued benefit nghts arrangements
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ANNEX 2
GROUP STRUCTURE FOLLOWING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SCHEME i

Shareholders

|

NewHoldCo

BVICo

The Company

EBT Mobile Limited
(incorporated in
Hong Kong

|

EBT International Trade
{Shanghaf) Co Ltd
{incorporated in China)

1AtoZ Bering Co,
(incorporated in China)”

Huben Yiteng
Telecommunications
Products Co, Ltd
{incorporated in China)

Shanghal YBT Service
Consutlting Co, Ltd
{incorporated in China)

Suzhou Yiteng
Telecommunications
Products Co, Ltd
(incorporated in China)

Shanghat Everbnght
Commumecation Terminal
Products BistnbutionLtd

(incorporated in China)

Shangha EBT
Telecommumications
Products Co, Ltd
(incorporated in China)

Suzhou Everbnght
Communication Terminal
Products Distnbution Lid

(incorporated in China)

*Note EBT Mobile Limited does not directly own the 1ssued share capital of 1A10Z Beyng Co, Ltd EBT Mobile Limited 1s able to

exercise control through exclusive purchase nghts and accrued benefit nghts arrangements
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ANNEX 3
* GROUP STRUCTURE FOLLOWING RE-ORGANISATION ;

Shareholders

NewHoldCo

BVICo

EBT Maobile Limited
(incorporated in
Hong Kong)

EBT International Trade
{Shanghas) Co Ltd
(incorporated in China)

1At0Z Beling Co,
(incorporated in Chuna)*

Hube Yiteng
Shanghal YBT Service Telecommunications

Consulting Co, Ltd Products Co, Ltd
{incorporated in China) (incorporated in China)

Shanghai Everbright Suzhou Yiteng
Communication Terrminal Telecommunications
Products Distnbution Ltd Products Co, Ltd

(incorporated in China) (sncorporated in China)
Suzhou Everbnght Shanghal EBT
Communication Terminal Telecommunications

Products Distnbution Ltd Producis Co, Ltd
(incorporated in China) {incorporated 1n China)

*Note EBT Mobile Limited does not directly own the issued share capital of 1AtoZ Beiping Co, Ltd EBT Mobile Limited I1s able to
exercise control through exclusve purchase rnights and accrued benefit nghts arrangements
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